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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. Liu Ta-pei (Chairman)

Mr. Kong Fanpeng

Mr. Yau Chung Hong (resigned on 12 March 2012)

Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan (resigned on 27 July 2012)

Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (appointed on 5 March 2012 and
resigned on 31 May 2012)

Non-executive Directors
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Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan (resigned on 3 April 2012)

Mr. Shiu Siu Tao (retired on 30 December 2011)

Mr. Ong Chi King (appointed on 20 January 2012)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu (re-designated as Independent Non-executive
Director on 28 June 2012)
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Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan (resigned on 3 April 2012)
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Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan (resigned on 3 April 2012)

Mr. Shiu Siu Tao (retired on 30 December 2011)
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Mr. Hung Cho Sing (Chairman) (appointed on 15 September 2012)
Mr. Lam Kwan

Mr. Ong Chi King (appointed on 20 January 2012)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu (appointed on 5 March 2012)

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (appointed on 31 May 2012)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Kwan Pak

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Dr. Liu Ta-pei
Mr. Chan Kwan Pak
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CUSTODIAN

Standard Chartered Bank

15/F, Standard Chartered Tower
388 Kwun Tong Road

Kwun Tong

Kowloon, Hong Kong

INVESTMENT MANAGER

China Angel Fund Management (HK) Company Limited
(appointed on 31 May 2012)

Rooms 3201-02, COSCO Tower

183 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank

AUDITOR

Cheng & Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

10th Floor, Allied Kajima Building
138 Gloucester Road

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 602, 6th Floor

New World Tower
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Hong Kong

WEBSITE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Capital VC
Limited (carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), it is my
pleasure to present you the Group’s audited annual results for the
year ended 30 June 2012.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group reported a negative
turnover of approximately HK$148.5 million (2011: HK$1.0 million)
and net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$100.8 million (2011: profit of HK$23.4 million).
During the year, the Group managed to dispose of some direct
investment projects, resulting in net gain on disposal of HK$20
million, and re-allocate our financial resources to our listed equities
portfolio as well as a technology investment, Go Markets Pty
Limited, (see below for more details). Net profit of approximately
HK$49.1 million (2011: HK$41.7 million) was shared to the Group
from its associate, CNI Bullion Limited, during the year.

The net proceeds from a placement exercise of approximately
HK$72.4 million and issuance of approximately 84.1 million ordinary
shares of the Company for the investment in Go Markets Pty Limited
at a consideration of approximately HK$19.0 million enlarged
the Group’s capital base during the year. After offset by the total
comprehensive loss of approximately HK$135.8 million, the net
asset value of the Group decreased from HK$414.1 million as at 30
June 2011 to HK$369.7 million as at 30 June 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

During the year under review, economic problems were no
longer confined to Europe and North America as China and other
developing countries also saw worrying slump in growth. Now the
fear is that the big economies of the emerging world are about
to join the west in a blanket slowdown. The global investment
environment has hence become more fragile than before. Due to
the deeply worsening of the investment environment, the Group
recorded a loss on financial asset at FVTPL of approximately
HK$153.1 million. In addition to the listed investments mentioned
above, the valuation of an available-for-sale investment — Quidam
Assets Limited was also adversely affected by the uncertainties in
the market. Loss on fair value changes of investment in Quidam
Assets Limited of approximately HK$15.0 million was recognised in
the current year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

In the environment of low interest rate, bullion has become
a popular investment product against inflation, which led to
keen bullion trading activities during the year. As a result, the
performance of the Group’s associate, CNI Bullion Limited, was
outstanding and its profit shared to the Group of HK$49.1 million
partially covered the fair result in the equity investments of the
Group.

In addition to the existing businesses, in May 2012, the Group
acquired an investment in Go Markets Pty Limited, which specializes
in offering online foreign exchange trading to retail investors as a
“Straight Through Processing” provider. The consideration for the
acquisition amounted to approximately HK$19.0 million, which was
satisfied by the Company allotting and issuing approximately 84.1
million shares to the vendor.

Although the investment environment has changed drastically
since late last year, to enhance our capital and shareholder bases,
improve the Group’s competitiveness as well as participate in
diversified projects with high potential, the Company underwent a
placement during the year. The Company has successfully placed
approximately 250 million shares at HK$0.3 per share in August
2011 and gross proceeds of approximately HK$75.0 million were
obtained from the above fund raising exercise.

Looking forward, we expect the global economic growth will
continue to slow down. Market risk aversion is likely to grow
fuelling bigger market uncertainty and volatility, the developed and
developing markets alike. However, Part 3 of Quantitative Easing
was announced in September 2012. The Federal Reserve decided to
launch a new US$40 billion a month, open-ended, bond purchasing
program of agency mortgage-backed securities and also to continue
extremely low rates policy until at least mid-2015, which is favorable
to the equity investments. Another positive factor is that the Chinese
Government may be less hawkish to further lighten the current
macro policy in the near term. The Directors will adopt cautious
measures to manage the portfolio of investments of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express our
gratitude to all management team and staff members for their
dedication and contribution in the past year. We would also like to
extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to our shareholders and
business partners for their continued support to as well as their
confidence in the Group.

Dr. Liu Ta-pei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 September 2012

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8#1 £ 4 BR 2 &)
Annual Report 2011/12 F &

LE
ESSEEUKENEBERAGSREINS

E—F2B I RBHBRBHAROCEH » FELLD

BREREBBEHHUAEB BN ZBREEEHH -

TE
BRE@EL

58 ZFE--FhA=-++tH



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
EEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Liu Ta-pei, aged 61, has been an Executive Director and
Chairman of the Company since 17 May 2010 and 5 May 2012
respectively. He graduated from Chung-Hsing University in Taiwan.
After graduation, he continued his studies in Cheng-Chi University,
Taiwan and the University of Southern California, U.S.A. and
obtained Master of Science and MBA degrees respectively. He was
then conferred his Doctoral degree in public administration from
the University of La Verne, U.S.A. Apart from his strong educational
background, Dr. Liu has been active in the financial field for more
than 20 years. He had been the director respectively of Universal
Chinese Securities Finance Co. Ltd., Chung-Hsin Bill Co. Ltd., and
Central Investment Holding Company and the chairman of Jen Hua
Investment Holding Company. Dr. Liu had also served as CEO of
Taiwan KMT (Ruling Party) Business Investment Committee and
had served the board of China Development Industry Bank, one of
the top management of Taiwan’s largest Investment Banks. Dr. Liu
had been the CEO and an executive director of the Core Pacific-
Yamaichi Group. Because of his outstanding contribution in the
financial field, Dr. Liu was granted the honour of ‘Golden Peak
Award of Outstanding Corporation Leaders in Taiwan’ in 1998, and
was ranked as one of the ‘“Top Ten Intelligent Financial Personnel in
Greater China’ and was conferred the ‘Best Integrity Award’ in 2008.
Dr. Liu is a non-executive director of Rocklands Richfield Limited, a
company listed on the Australian Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kong Fanpeng, aged 44, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 18 March 2010. He obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in Finance and Auditing from Zhongshan University, the PRC. Mr.
Kong was a manager of Huizhou TCL Information System Limited
and Guangzhou Bada Telecommunications Limited. He also worked
as the general manager of the PRC market and an executive director
respectively at Chief Securities Limited in Hong Kong and Excalibur
Securities Limited in Hong Kong, specializing in risk averse
arbitrage trading in both Shenzhen and Hong Kong capital market.
Mr. Kong has a wealth of experience in the Hong Kong securities
market for over 10 years and is well versed in investment in the
second board market. Mr. Kong is currently the chairman and an
executive director of Shenzhen Wansheng Investment Management
Company Limited.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Hung Cho Sing, aged 71,
Director of the Company since 15 September 2011. He has over 30

has been a Non-executive

years of experience in the film distribution industry and founded
Delon International Film Corporation in 1970. He has been the
chairman of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion Picture
Industry Association Limited since 1991 and was the chairman of
Hong Kong Film Awards Association from 1992 to 1995. Mr. Hung
was appointed by the HKSAR Government as a member of the Hong
Kong Film Development Council since 2007. He was also appointed
as a director of the China Film Association since 2009. Mr. Hung is
also a member of HKSAR Election Committee and a vice-chairman
of the Cultural Profession Committee of the Guangdong, Hong Kong
and Macau Cooperation Promotion Council. Mr. Hung was awarded
the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the HKSAR Government in 2005
in recognition of his contribution to the Hong Kong Film industry.
Mr. Hung is an independent non-executive director of China Star
Entertainment Limited (stock code: 326).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Kwan, aged 43, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 10 September 2003.
He obtained a Bachelor degree in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a practicing Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lam is currently a director of
Charles H.C. Cheung & CPA Limited.

Mr. Ong Chi King, aged 39, an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 20 January 2012, is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Ong received a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and
a master’'s degree in corporate finance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Ong has more than 16 years of
experience in accounting, finance and company secretarial fields
and held senior positions in finance and company secretarial
departments in various listed companies listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong is currently a qualified accountant
and company secretary of a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu, aged 42, a Non-executive Director of the
Company since 5 March 2012 until re-designed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 28 June 2012, is
a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder and a professional
accountant in Hong Kong, and is also qualified as a solicitor in Hong
Kong. He has a Master degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie
University in Sydney and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Cheung has over 20
years of working experience in international accounting firms and
law firms and listed companies in direct investment, accounting,
legal, corporate finance and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Cheung
is currently an executive director of Pearl Oriental Oil Limited (Stock
Code: 0632) and an independent non-executive director of Hong
Long Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1383). Mr. Cheung was also
an independent non-executive director of Global Green Tech Group
Limited (Stock Code: 0274) during the period from 25 September
2009 to 31 December 2010.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group reported a negative
turnover of approximately HK$148.5 million (2011: HK$1.0 million)
and net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$100.8 million (2011: profit of HK$23.4 million).
During the year, the Group managed to dispose of some direct
investment projects and re-allocate our financial resources to our
listed equities portfolio as well as a technology investment — Go
Markets Pty Limited.

As at 30 June 2012, the net assets value (“NAV”) of the Group
was HK$369.7 million (2011: HK$414.1 million), a decrease of 10.7%
over the same period in 2011. The NAV per share of the Group was
HK$0.3996 (2011: HK$0.7005).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 30 June 2012, the Group held assets of approximately
HK$413.6 million (2011: HK$479.4 million), including bank balances
of HK$0.7 million (2011: HK$14.5 million). The bank balances
decreased significantly because substantial amounts were used to
settle margin payables, which decreased from HK$58.5 million as at
30 June 2011 to HK$36.1 million as at 30 June 2012. As the Group’s
current ratio (as defined by current assets/current liabilities) only
slightly decreased from 5.4 as at 30 June 2011 to 5.2 as at 30 June
2012, which is considered healthy, the Board believes that the Group
has sufficient resources to satisfy its working capital requirements.

Capital Structure

Following a placement exercise, 250,000,000 shares at HK$0.3
each were allotted and issued on 23 August 2011. In addition,
84,116,984 shares have been allotted and issued for investment in
Go Markets Pty Limited during the year. Accordingly, the number of
issued shares of the Company increased from 591,169,847 as at 1
July 2011 to 925,286,831 as at 30 June 2012.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER W& D

Capital Commitment

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had no material commitment.

Contingent Liabilities
Details of contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign Currency Fluctuation

The Group has a number of investment projects in the PRC
and may be subject to a certain degree of investment return risk.
In spite of this, the Board believes that foreign exchange risks are
minimal as the Group mainly uses Hong Kong dollars to carry out its
business transactions.

Human Resources

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had 5 employees excluding
the Directors. Total staff costs excluding Directors’ remuneration
amounted to approximately HK$0.7 million. They perform clerical,
research, business development and administrative functions for
the Group. The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the
prevailing market practice and the staff remuneration is determined
on the basis of the performance and experience of individual
employees.

Significant Acquisition of Subsidiaries

During the year under review, the Group acquired a subsidiary,
which holds the investment in Go Markets Pty Limited, at a
consideration of approximately HK$19.0 million settled by issuance
of approximately 84.1 million ordinary shares of the Company.

Charge of Assets

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had pledged financial assets
at FVTPL of approximately HK$76.0 million to secure the margin
payables.
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The Board is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
with emphasis on transparency, independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate
governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) issued
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in
its Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) sets out two levels of corporate governance
practices, namely, mandatory Code provisions that a listed company
must comply with or explain its non-compliance, and recommended
best practices that listed companies are encouraged to comply with
but need not disclose in the case of non-compliance. The Company
is in compliance with the mandatory Code provisions, save for the
deviations discussed below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

The Board comprises two Executive Directors, one Non-
executive Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
The Board has appointed Committees to oversee different areas
of the Company’s affairs. The composition of the Board and the
Committees are given below and their respective responsibilities are
discussed in this report.

The number of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings
attended by each Director during the year under review is set out in
the following table. Figure in brackets indicates maximum number of
meetings in the period in which the individual was a Board Member
or Committee Member (as the case may be).
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Name of Director Note Board
Exps hriz Bz
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Yau Chung Hong 1 REMEE 12/(13)
Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan 2 HREREE 12/(19)
Mr. Kong Fanpeng ALABEE 3/(19)
Dr. Liu Ta-pei ZREFL 10/(19)
Mr. Yau Yan Ming Raymond 3 BRHEE 6/(6)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Hug Cho Sing 4 HEEEE 8/(14)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu 5 REIW £ & 5/(5)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFSTES
Mr. Lam Kwan moOBgHE 12/(12)
Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan 6 3208 e 6/(9)
Mr. Shiu Siu Tao 7 BOEEE 3/(4)
Mr. Ong Chi King 8 EER it 6/(7)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu 9 REMEE 0/(0)

Notes:

1.
2.
3.

o &

© ®» N o

Resigned on 12 March 2012
Resigned on 27 July 2012
Appointed on 5 March 2012 and resigned on 31 May 2012

Appointed on 15 September 2011

Appointed on 5 March 2012 and re-designated as Independent
Non-executive Director on 28 June 2012

Resigned on 3 April 2012

Retired on 30 December 2011

Appointed on 20 January 2012

Re-designated as Independent Non-executive Director on 28 June
2012

The Board members have no financial, business, family or

other material/relevant relationships with each other. Each of the

Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed in writing their

independence from the Company in accordance with the guidelines

on director independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the

Company considers all such Directors to be independent.

Audit Remuneration Nomination Investment

Committee Committee Committee = Committee

ERZEEE FHWEEE REZEE REZEE

N/AT i A NATER  NATER 5/(5)
N/ATE A NATER  NATER 5/(9)
N/AT i A NATER  NATEAR 6/(9)
N/AT i A NATER  NATER 6/(9)
N/ATE R N/ATE A N/ATE A 2/(3)
N/ATE A 0/(2) 0/(1) N/ATE A

N/ATE A N/ATE N/ATE B N/ATE

2/(2) 5/(5) 1(1) NATER
2/(2) 4/(4) 0/(1) N/ATE A
0/(1) 1/(2) 0/(0) N/ATE A
11(1) 2(2) 11(1) N/ATE A
0/(0) 0/(0) 0/(0) N/ATEA
Bt
1. R=ZB——F=A+=A%E
2. RZZE——FtA-t++tABE
R-ZE--F=AAAEZEF ATR= —-F
HEA=+—HBEHME
4 R-ZE——FAATEREZT
5, RZE-——F=-AAAEEMF UNR-_ZT-——-F
NAZTNREEBIHATES
6. R=ZZE—-—FWNB=HEE
7. RZE——F+=-A=+HERE
8. R—E——_F—B-+HEZHZ
9. RZB-—-EXNA-+/\AEIBIYFHUITESE

BESEREZHYRENE K HBER
HtbEX HEBRR - SBILFBTESEREL
MARAMESH UM 25  EEBERAEBLM

At

ARARARZETREBIAL -
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Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this report are set out on pages 7 to 9 of this annual report.
Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge and
expertise of the Directors, the Board believes that it is appropriately
structured to provide sufficient checks and balances to protect the
interests of the Group and the shareholders. The Board will review
its composition regularly to ensure that it has the appropriate
balance of expertise, skills and experience to continue to effectively
oversee the business of the Company.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board of
Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee with
the reference to their respective duties and responsibility with the
Company, the Company’s performance and current market situation.
Details of emoluments of the Directors for the year are disclosed in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

A Director may be appointed either by the shareholders in
a general meeting or by the Board on recommendation of the
Nomination Committee. The Board takes into account criteria
such as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when
considering a new appointment.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
(“Articles”), all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meetings of the Company. New Directors
appointed by the Board during the year are required to retire and
submit themselves for re-election at the first general meeting
immediately following their appointments. Further, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding
one-third are required to retire from office.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. The Company has no Chairman until 5 March
2012 and has no Chief Executive until 31 May 2012. Decisions are
made collectively by the Executive Directors. The Board believes
that the arrangement enables the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s objectives
efficiently and effectively in response to the changing environment.
The Board also believes that the Company already has a strong
corporate governance structure in place to ensure effective

oversight of management.

TERM OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Currently all Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have no specific term of appointment but they
are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to serve the purpose of this Code provision.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all
Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend external forum
or training courses on relevant topics which may count towards
Continuous Professional Development training.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the “Corporate Governance Code”,
which has come into effect from 1 April 2012, Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. For
the period from 1 April 2012 to 30 June 2012, all Directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities either by attending training courses or by reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kwan Pak has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since June 2005. Mr. Chan is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered and Certified Accountants. He reports
to the Chairman of the Board and assists the Board in functioning
effectively and efficiently. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook over
15 hours of professional training to update his skill and knowledge.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all three Independent Non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Lam Kwan, who possesses
extensive financial and accounting experience in commercial
sectors. It is responsible for appointment of external auditors, review
of the Group’s financial information and oversight of the Group’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedures. The
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the interim and final
results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for
approval. It meets regularly to review financial reporting and internal
control matters and to this end has unrestricted access to personnel,
records and external auditors and senior management.

The Committee has specific written terms of reference which are
of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in Code Provision.
In the year ended 30 June 2012, the Audit Committee held two
meetings. At the meetings, it reviewed the final results for the year
ended 30 June 2011 and the interim accounts for the six months
ended 31 December 2011 respectively and the internal control
structure. It also reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing
the corporate governance requirements as set out in the Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee, comprises all three Independent
Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive Director Mr.
Hung Cho Sing, is responsible for reviewing and determining the
compensation and benefits of the Directors and senior management.
The Committee is chaired by Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Ong Chi King. The Committee has specific written terms of
reference which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated
in Code Provision.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee, comprises all three Independent
Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive Director Mr. Hung
Cho Sing and is chaired by Mr. Hung. The responsibilities of the
Committee include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting or making recommendations
to the Board on selection of individual nominated for directorships;
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive; and determining
the policy for nomination of directors. The Committee has specific
written terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those stipulated in Code Provision.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee, comprises all Executive Directors, is
responsible for formulating investment policies and reviewing and
determining the investment portfolio of the Group. The Committee is
chaired by Dr. Liu Ta-pei.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring such
accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow for that period. The Company’s
accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates
made are prudent and reasonable.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s
system of internal control includes a defined management structure
with limits of authority, safeguard its assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to oversee
the Group’s operational systems for the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.
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During the year, the Company engaged an independent
professional firm to conduct an internal control review. Suggestions

have been made for uplifting the internal control level.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company appointed Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditor
of the Company on 8 September 2009 following the resignation
of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited on 1 September 2009. In the
year ended 30 June 2012, total remuneration paid to the auditors
was HK$480,000 (2011: HK$580,000), being HK$480,000 (2011:
HK$480,000) for audit and HK$Nil (2011: HK$100,000) for other

professional service.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on page 26 and page 27.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-compliance with
the Model Code during the year and they all confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective
communications with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to
enhance such communications, the Company provides information
relating to the Company and its business in its interim and annual
reports.

The Company regards its annual general meetings as an
opportunity for direct communications between the Board and
its shareholders. All Directors, senior management and external
auditors make an effort to attend the annual general meetings to
address shareholders’ queries. The Company also responds to
requests for information and queries from the shareholders and
investors and welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management direct.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
A. Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an

Extraordinary General Meeting

Extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board of Directors or the Secretary of the Company (Room 602, 6/F,
New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong) for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene such meeting, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

B. Procedures for Shareholders to Nominate a Director

A notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company and a notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected together with his/her
particulars (such as qualifications and experience) and information
as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited shall be lodged at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business (Room 602, 6/F, New World Tower, 16-18
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong) or at its branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited (26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong). The period for lodgment of the notices
required will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting,
and the minimum length of the period during which such notices to
the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to
present the annual report and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investing in listed and
unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in

note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 28 to 107. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2012.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 30 June 2012,
calculated in accordance with the laws of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to HK$275,376,472 (2011: HK$236,074,853).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate to conform with
current year’s presentation, is set out on page 108.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

SHARE OPTIONS

The details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 30 September 2003 are set out in note 29(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the share options granted and the share options
outstanding as at 30 June 2012 are set out in note 29(b) to the
consolidated financial statements

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yau Chung Hong (resigned on 12 March 2012)

Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan (resigned on 27 July 2012)

Mr. Kong Fanpeng

Dr. Liu Ta-pei

Mr. Yau Yan Ming Raymond (appointed on 5 March 2012 and
resigned on 31 May 2012)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hug Cho Sing (appointed on 15 September 2011)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu (appointed on 5 March 2012 and re-designated
as Independent Non-executive Director on 28 June 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kwan

Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan (resigned on 3 April 2012)

Mr. Shiu Siu Tao (retired on 30 December 2011)

Mr. Ong Chi King (appointed on 20 January 2012)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu (re-designated as Independent Non-executive
Director on 28 June 2012)
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At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Ong Chi King
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Yu shall retire in accordance with Article 87(3)
of the Company’s articles of association. Both of them being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election thereat. Re-election of Mr. Lam
Kwan as an independent non-executive Director shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval in accordance with the recommended best
practice of the Listing Rules since his term of service has been over
nine years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 30 June 2012, none of the Directors have entered into
any service agreement with any member of the Group which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, existed at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2012, none of the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company had or were deemed to have any Discloseable
Interests or Short Position in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”) (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained
in the Listing Rules (collectively “Discloseable Interests or Short
Positions”).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2012, the interests of substantial shareholders
(other than the Directors or chief executive) in the Shares or the
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of shareholder

BREEMH

Willie International Holdings Limited BRBERZERERQ A

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2012, there was no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who had any interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director, the chief executive or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; nor was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following contracts (not being contracts in the ordinary
course of business) were entered into by the Company during the
year, which are or may be material:

1. On 9 September 2011, the Company entered into an
agreement with a purchaser for the disposal of 20% issued
share capital of UCCTV Holdings Limited, an investee
company of the Company, for a consideration of HK$38
million in aggregate.

2. On 15 September 2011, Million Full Assets Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
with a purchaser for the disposal of 15% issued share capital
of IIN Network Education (BVI) Limited, an investee company
of the Company, for a consideration of HK$32 million in
aggregate.

3. On 2 May 2012 the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Superior Global International
Limited (the “Vendor”) to acquire an interest in Long
Surplus Investments Limited. The consideration payable
by the Company under the agreement would be settled by
the allotment and issue of new consideration shares to the
Vendor.

Save as disclosed, no other material contract (not being contract
entered into in the ordinary course of business) was entered into by
any member of the Group during the year.

LITIGATION
The details of a pending litigation are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements sets out the
“Related and Connected Party Transactions” and disclosed the
continuing connected transactions.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirmed that at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Details of the subsequent events of the Group are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
have been audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited. Cheng & Cheng
Limited retires and, being eligible, offers itself for reappointment. A
resolution for reappointment of Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditor of
the Company is to be propsed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Kong Fanpeng
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 September 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 B R

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
wmom o out WoF OB A R A A

10/F, Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
EREFELITBI38RBAaRBE RE10E

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CAPITAL VC LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Capital
VC Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 28 to 107 which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2012, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibilities for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2012
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Cheng & Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Sum Steven

Practising Certificate Number: P03747

Hong Kong, 27 September 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

2012 2011

—g--% -B——%

Notes HKS$ HK$

et BT BT

Turnover gam 7 (148,462,292) (984,164)

Other income Haug A 9 2,558,516 1,417,828

Administrative expenses THEHR (17,703,094) (13,981,443)
Net gain on disposal of HEAMHRBEEREZ

available-for-sale investments W& F 5 20,000,000 =

Loss on written off of plant and equipment THBERRBZER - (152,233)

Operating loss EEEE (143,606,870) (13,700,012)

Finance costs L& B AR 10 (6,260,494) (4,603,410)

Share of results of an associate e N EE 17 49,073,667 41,674,842

(Loss) profit before tax BRF A (B 18) B F 11 (100,793,697) 23,371,420

Income tax P %t 12 - =

(Loss) profit for the year REE(EE)RF (100,793,697) 23,371,420

Dividend BRE 13 - -

(Losses) earnings per share — basic FR(BEB)BF —EK 14 (0.1241) 0.0558

— diluted — 55 N/A ~E A N/A 73
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meZERE

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

2012 2011
—E—_F —_E——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to KRB RESFE AEL
equity holders of the Company REE (FB) BF (100,793,697) 23,371,420
Other comprehensive loss Hih2mEEE

Loss on fair value changes of
available-for-sale investments

Transfer from investment revaluation reserve on
disposal of available-for-sale investments

IHEEREZARE
ZHEE

REEAHEHERERH
RESMHFREEA

(15,000,000)

(20,000,000)

(15,305,087)

Other comprehensive loss for the
year, net of tax

BRRRzAFERMER
p ]

(35,000,000)

(15,305,087)

Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company

RRARREFEABGERFE
2H (BB WERER

(135,793,697)

8,066,333
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI &

At 30 June 2012 R=Z——FA=+H

2012 2011
—E—_F —_E——F
Notes HK$ HK$
KiaE BT BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Plant and equipment BEKRE 16 1,293,164 1,416,802
Interest in an associate REEZE DR 2 Em 17 140,087,101 91,013,434
Available-for-sale investments AHHEERE 19 21,000,000 36,000,000
Amounts receivable on disposal of HEAHEERE
available-for-sale investments 2 FEWFRIE 21 25,000,000 =
187,380,265 128,430,236
Current assets RBEE
Available-for-sale investments HtHEERE 19 19,008,480 70,000,000
Financial assets at fair value BAREFABRER
through profit or loss 2 EERE 20 76,039,014 165,882,076
Loans receivable W ERFE 18 12,000,000 10,000,000
Prepayments, deposits and other FEARIE - R REAM
receivables FE U TR 18 21 81,850,313 45,775,027
Amounts due from investee companies ERESKEEQARRE 22 - 716,808
Amounts due from an associate FE Uk Bt & N B FRIE 17 36,611,883 44,125,000
Bank balances IRITHE R 23 724,736 14,486,942
226,234,426 350,985,853
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals HtENREBERESER 24 41,306,161 62,578,201
Amounts due to directors ENEEFE 25 2,305,960 2,222,418
Amounts due to investee companies ERESEREQARRE 26 - 49,639
Obligations under finance leases A& A e
— due within one year —-—FREH 27 209,260 195,041
43,821,381 65,045,299
Net current assets REBEEFEE 182,413,045 285,940,554
369,793,310 414,370,790
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI &

At 30 June 2012 R=Z——FA=+H

2012 2011
—g-—-—& 3%
Notes HK$ HK$
K&t BT BT
Capital and reserves EARR A
Share capital [N 28 92,528,683 59,116,985
Reserves # 1B 277,191,537 354,971,454
Total equity attributable to AT REFE AEERER
equity holders of the Company FEEC 369,720,220 414,088,439
Non-current liability FRBEE
Obligations under finance leases al & A RIE
- due after one year ——F & 27 73,090 282,351
369,793,310 414,370,790
Net asset value per share BREEFE 30 0.3996 0.7005

The consolidated financial statements on pages 28 to 107 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
September 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

Liu Ta-pei
Z2IKRE
Director

EF

HNE28BE0TE 2R A BRRENR=ZZE—=
FANA-THLAEESSHERBZERT AU
TREREE:

Kong Fanpeng
7L AL 1S
Director

EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE N 2 gy
S BT L
For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARARBREARLER
(Accumulated
Investment losses)
Share Share Share option revaluation  retained profits
capital premium reserve reserve (B3t EER) Total
hA RiEE BRERE REEMRE REER @it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
At 1 July 2010 R-Z-ZEt5-R 31,508,218 229,178,977 1,253,060 56,038,087 (579,467 317,398,875
Profit for the year REERF - - - - 23,371,420 23,371,420
Loss on fair value changes of AHHEREL
available-for-sale investments (Note 19) AR EEBEE(HH19) - - - (15,305,087) - (15,305,087)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2ERALE = = = (15,305,087) 23,371,420 8,066,333
Share option scheme (Note 28(a)): BRE 2 (N228(2)):
- value of service -BBEE - - 2,031,456 - - 2,031,456
- proceeds from share issued -BRTRAFAENE 1,643,158 4,299,047 - - - 5,942,205
- transfer to share premium -ERARMEE - 1,253,060 (1,253,060) = = =
Issue of ordinary shares NHRARBTER
by right issue (Note 28(c)) (K3228()) 19,474,609 38,949,218 . . - 58423827
Issue of ordinary shares NRERABTERR
by placing (Note 28(b)) (K32281) 6,491,000 16,227,500 . . - 22,718,500
Share issue expenses RARTER = (492,757) = = = (492,757)
At 30 June 2011 RZE--FxA=1H 59,116,985 289,415,045 2,031,456 40,733,000 22,191,953 414,088,439
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

o A E 3L a4
meERE

ik

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARARBREARLER
Retained profits
Investment (accumulated
Share Share Share option revaluation losses)
capital premium reserve reserve REEF Total
BA REEE BRERE REEMRE (B3t HR) st
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$
At 1 July 2011 R=E--E£t5-A 59,116,985 289,415,045 2,031,456 40,733,000 22,791,953 414,088,439
Loss for the year REERE - - - - (100,793,697) (100,793,697)
Loss on fair value changes of AHHEREY
available-for-sale investments (Note 19) A AEEBEE(HH19) - - - (15,000,000) - (15,000,000)
Transfer to consolidated income REETHLERERES
statement on disposal of GalER
available-for-sale investments - - - (20,000,000) - (20,000,000)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AEE2EFRAHE - - - (35,000,000 (100,793,697) (135,793,697)
Issue of ordinary shares NEEFRBTERR
by placing (Note 28(d) and (¢)) (W28 e)) 33,411,698 60,596,780 - - - 94,008,478
Share issue expenses RABTER - (2,583,000) - - - (2,583,000)
At 30 June 2012 R-E-ZEXA=1H 92,528,683 347,428,825 2,031,456 5,733,000 (78,001,744 369,720,220
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERETMER

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Interest income
Interest expenses
Share of results of an associate
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Impairment loss on prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Loss on written off of plant and equipment
Share option expenses

REXEK
BREAT (B518) B F
BEHUT A :
BERZEITE
FEWA
MERX
iR =N

HEAJHREERE 2 F W

HERE KRBz i

ENRE  REREMER

IR E R
THBERRBZEE
B IR FE R X

2012
—E—_F
HK$

(100,793,697)

561,351
(6,471,647)

6,260,494
(49,073,667)

(20,000,000)

2,250,000

2011
—E——5F
HK$

BT

23,371,420

1,028,221
(1,302,817)

4,603,410
(41,674,842)

(250,000)

152,233
2,031,456

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease (increase) in financial assets

LEETHBANKEE
REng
BAREFABREE 2

(167,267,166)

(12,040,919)

at fair value through profit or loss Mg EERD (M) 89,843,062 (109,249,850)
(Increase) decrease in prepayments, EARE - REREMER

deposits and other receivables FRIE (38 0) F A (58,853,639) 14,476,564
(Decrease) increase in other Hih S RIE R EST

payables and accruals B ORA)Em (21,272,040) 27,193,328
Cash used in operations REEBRERS (157,549,783) (79,620,877)

Interest on bank and other borrowings

ARLERNZHELZRITR

wholly repayable within five years Hih B F 2 (6,233,032) (4,552,097)
Interest on obligations under finance leases REROREZFE (27,462) (51,313)
Tax paid [EENEE - (568,702)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBESRHEFHELEE

ACTIVITIES CARRIED FORWARD

(163,810,277)

(84,792,989)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEREMEBR

For the year ended 30 June 2012 & Z =% —

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

BROUGHT FORWARD
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in amount due from

—FERNAZTRLFE

AARERBR TR EFE

REES

FEWEZRE QXA RIE

2012
—E—_F
HK$

(163,810,277)

2011
—E——5F
HK$

BT

(84,792,989)

investee companies bR 667,169 1,645,891
Decrease (increase) in amount due FE U Bt N R R IE R A (38 )
from an associate 7,513,117 (13,905,000)
Purchases of plant and equipment BEREKRZE (437,713) (1,609,979)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEAHHERE (19,008,480) =
Sales proceeds from disposal of HEHEEREZHEBHEHE
available-for-sale investments FIE 70,000,000 -
Sales proceeds from disposal of HEBERRE
plant and equipment 2B HEERE - 250,000
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) REFERSFH
INVESTING ACTIVITIES A G ) 58,734,093 (13,619,088)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEED
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BT ERTBRIE 94,008,478 87,084,532
Repayment of debentures EEEEFNRE - (1,000,000)
Expenses on issue of ordinary shares BITEBEREX (2,583,000) (492,757)
Proceeds from finance lease BMEMRYMERIE - 600,000
Repayments of obligations under finance EBEMERYREMNSRE
leases (195,042) (633,230)
Increase in amounts B ESRIEE M
due to directors 83,542 1,120,534
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEZH RS TFEAA 91,313,978 86,679,079
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERREEEBEYRDFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (13,762,206)  (11,732,998)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FARERAEEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 14,486,942 26,219,940
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRASRES
END OF YEAR, £EY
represented by, bank balances LUSRITE R E Y 724,736 14,486,942

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & # A1 4 BR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. During the year, the principal place of
business has been changed to Room 602, 6/F., New World
Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”).

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in investing
in listed and unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRs and interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

HKFRS (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosure

HK (IFRIC) — INT 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
(Amendment) Funding Requirement

HK (IFRIC) — INT 19 Extinguishing Financial

Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the amounts reported
in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 &

E-F-FAASTALFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations
issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, interpretations and amendments that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 28 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HK (IFRIC) - INT 20

First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Standards - Government
Loans?®

Disclosures Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial
Liabilities®

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial
Statements?®
Joint Arrangements?®

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities?®
Fair Value Measurement?

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?
Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets'
Employee Benefits?®

Separate Financial Statements?®

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?®

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities*

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

2. XAFAIREETEEBMBHREER
((EBMBREEL ] @)

B BB RERZH T REBTE R

BREER 228

REBIERAEMUT S BMAEERERZ
A REIET BB BREER - REBREFT

K o

ERMBHRE

g
13K (1857 %)

BBYEIREER
EXGACCHIEN)

BBV KRG EA
Ll

BB KRS ER
1058

B HKRE R
E115E

BB HREEA
E125%

BB KRS ER
1358

EBETHER
B (BT A)

EBETER
1258 (1B5TA)

EBGTER
1958 (KIERT)

EBETHER
SE279R (K15 ET)

EBETER
5E285% (&£155])

EBGER
%3258 (BETA)

EB (BEBRMBERE
REZEY)
—REBE205

BREMBEBYBRS
ZR-RBRESZ

&

BRE-KEMBEEER
% E A

BBYBIREER
B RIBEREN
58 il 14 A 3 H RS

LRI ES

REFBHREK

HEz B

REREMERZ

R 25

AFEHE

2 HMEEBA
HE?

IEIERIR - WE AR R
BE

BERAIS

B 5 B i R ke

REBEATREERE
ZRE

HENBEERMT
& &

BABSEERRZ
FI PR B AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

2,

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

The directors anticipate that the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs, Interpretations and Amendment will have
no material financial impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8 A1 84 BR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHEE @

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of
the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.

FERBEEE @

MEFE WEBLARZHBRRESHFLHA
B FHETBRRESEEEMKE QT MK
ME-2-

FEEBRRARIBZRS BRI RER
BIRERHE-

RBEQRZRE
BMENRAREREEHEBEALE - MFH
BRRTFEELK2ER -

BERNRZRE  BEREBEDUSTESEE
MAZEREMBEHEER - REBEZE - R

RAZREDEEAIRGEEHHARR KRS 5
IR WRAEEDEZEBRERR ZEEFE
ZWBERBBELAR  URREE[EHER
ZREBE - EXAKESERBENRD ZBE
HERABHERZBE QAR 2R (BFEE
fARMERD MZRIEZEE LBRAKE
NZBMENRA 2 REFHE 2 —BD) - XK
ETrBEBERIE DG ZE-—SEE - B D
E2BRDEER MAEEEUFKEEEE
FEESEEEEINRZBE XIFELHARE
RRMEER o

AEEBEIHRAEE BERIAREEZL
AFESHBBRA 2B EEHTFERIIE

RRIEmiER o

fEEAEE s —FBREARET ARS8
BRAAKREREREBE QTP 2B B RM

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & # A1 4 BR 2
Annual Report 2011/12 % $&



40

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and/or annual
rates of depreciation adopted, if any, are as follows:

— Leasehold improvements 25% - 50%

— Furniture and fixtures 25%
— Offce equipment 25%
— Computers 25%
— Motor vehicles 25%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in
which the item is dereognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFHRG@
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) ERT A (&)
Effective interest method BEBFEE

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expenses over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term, or it is
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
pattern of short-term profit-making. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivates are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

BRNRERTENBEENMBRE 2 #E
BARREBRBB I BAEBRARAEH 2
Tk BENEDAEREBNBERE 2
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HEBEEE
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MBEE  ABRNHE ERRAUSERE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

— such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At the end of the reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including loan
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from an associate/
related companies/investee companies and bank balances) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment loss of financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

FTESITHE @)

TRIT R @@

BARETA B EEZ L E (F)
i HIRTHER  MBEERIDSEIABEE
BEARERABRSER !

- FHEEMHEIARERESERERA
REHBRA—B2ZBER %

- UBEEARMBEESMBREER
AHRME - WREAEEBRERBEES
REXRE  RANBEEEERFAMER
B moBENRNRZEERARBRES
£

- HAREE-EIULASTETIAZS
WHEPED - MBEBETTERIFEIR AT
BNEHEHN (BEREB) BEERR
DNABEFABRDEE -

ROFTEIBRZEHERR  BRAABERAR
mREBEZUBEEDRAXENE  MARE
ZEDERSEE 2HBNEETRARDE
R RalERFNERBEI2ERFETE
FBHBEEMRRZEMRERFIL

B REKFE
ERREWRIERELFERHSHREN S B
BERTEERREZFTETAMKEE - ©
AFTEAREHREDR EXREWKE (B
FERWERRIE  HMREWRRIR - B
DA/ BEAR BEEREDNAREURIERT
i) DRBEBRARAERNREZREMND
B REBRAR(RTXREAMBEEZR
EEBRZEHRE) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHEE @

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL
or loans and receivables.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment loss of
financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition (see accounting policy
on impairment loss of financial assets below).

Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter party;
or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as loan
receivables and other receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be

reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTFBER®@E
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) ERT A (&)
Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued) BBEEZHEERE (&)
The carrying amount of financial assets is reduced by the MR EBEIRNRIEEEZEVERFIE - Hit

impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loans receivables, other receivables, amounts
due from investee companies/related companies/an associate
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When the
loan receivables, other receivables, amounts due from investee
companies/related companies/an associate are considered
uncollectible, they are written-off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally
classified as other financial liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including other payables, amounts
due to directors/related companies, debentures and obligations
under finance leases are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEE @

(Continued)

Impairment losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amounts, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for trading of listed securities and
represents amounts receivable for interest income, dividend
income from investments in listed securities and net gain on
disposal of financial assets at FVTPL and available-for-sale
investments. It also includes the net gains (losses) on financial
assets at FVTPL.

Sale of available-for-sale securities and equity investments at
FVTPL are recognised on a trade date basis.

Dividend income from investments in listed securities including
financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset including financial
assets at FVTPL is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised in equity
in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other assets are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included at the end of the
reporting period as a finance lease. obligation. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to profit or loss.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated financial statements in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. At the end of each reporting period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognises the impact of
the revision of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income with corresponding
adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and the share premium when the options are exercised.

FTESITHE @)
B 19 3% B
AEMMBAE—EURELE - LURDEM =5

Bo-HEESRHBRBMETZEREZAR
DHEABAX - BRBBHAIERX RS
BHSEMRTEREZAAEEE (TEE
EAFDENECBBRETEEZHE W
BRNEIREERERER) - EREEHT
FLTEEBREHERK  FERFHSMHE
ZEBIRG R - RIBEHK  ZEE
ABUFEM A FUTE 2 BRERE e
it WERES BE W SRR R T
EEZEE (WA)  RRHTHEBHALER
EHAERE -

B WRIE (MBREMEEETR S RA) E1T
£ 48 PR AR R 18 A IR AN (TEIME) &% IR 10055 1B ©

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & # A1 4 BR 2
Annual Report 2011/12 % $&

91



92

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ =% —

—FERAZTRLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

(b)

related to the Group if that person

(i)

(if)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group; or

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

one entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTFBER®@E
(Continued)
Other provisions and contingent liabilities HiBERIAEE

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(i) Useful lives and residual values of items of plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items
of plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the product
or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on
the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of
the asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/
or the residual values of items of plant and equipment
are different from previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed, at each financial year end
date based on changes in circumstances.

(ii) Estimation of impairment loss recognised in respect of
loan and other receivables

The Group determines the impairment loss recognised
in respect of loan and other receivables in respect of
advances to the debtors based on objective evidence of
impairment and historical loss experience of the individual
balance of the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii) Valuation of available-for-sale investments
In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar unlisted equity securities, the Group determines
the fair values by using valuation techniques based on
information from a variety of sources, including the latest
information of the available-for-sale investments.

The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale
investments as at 30 June 2012 was HK$40,008,480 (2011:
HK$106,000,000), further details of which are set out in
Note 19.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
included obligations under finance leases as disclosed in Notes
27, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity
holder of the Company, comprising issued share capital and

reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through payment of
dividends, issue of debentures, new share issues and share
buy-back.

4.,

BAREESTHERESTBEREZZE
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EEEUFLTRAZESZNERMISE
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R-ZB——HEXA=1+H gJHHEERE
2 BRTE{E £40,008,4808 T (=2 ——4& :
106,000,0007%8 7T) » sF1EE N MEE19 ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Categories of financial instruments

EMTH

a) ERMIEBEZSE

2012 2011
—2--% -B——%
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets BKEE
Financial assets at FVTPL EBEARBEFAERERE
ZHBEE 76,039,014 165,882,076
Loan and receivables BEREEWRIE
- loans receivables -EWERFE 12,000,000 10,000,000
— other receivables, net —HibhEWRIE  FEE 106,850,313 45,775,027
— amounts due from —-EWEZSKRE
investee companies UNGIE !z - 716,808
— amount due from an associate —EWNEEE R B RIE 36,611,883 44,125,000
Bank balances RITHER 724,736 14,486,942
156,186,932 115,103,777
Available-for-sale investments B ERE 40,008,480 106,000,000
272,234,426 386,985,853
Financial liabilities g =
Other financial liabilities at BEERASEZ
amortised cost HtBKaes
- other payables — H b FE {58 41,306,161 62,578,201
— amounts due to —-EfEZIREARNRE
investee companies - 49,639
— amounts due to directors —-ENESEFHE 2,305,960 2,222,418
- obligations under finance - MEHENEE
leases 282,350 477,392
43,894,471 65,327,650
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, financial assets at FVTPL, loan
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related
companies/an associate/investee companies, bank
balances, other payables, amounts due to directors/related
companies, debentures and obligations under finance
leases. Details of these finance instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

i)  Currency risk
The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are substantially denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
Accordingly, the management considers the foreign
exchange risk to the Group is not significant.

ii)  Other price risk
The Group’s available-for-sale investments and
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group
is exposed to equity security price risk. Management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.

6. €A I A )

b)

BEEREEERERBER

AEECTESRIAGETHREER
B -BAREFAESRECUBEE
FEWERFR - AR WIE - BIREE
DR/ HEDNR BEEREQVATA R
1THEER - HIbEARUE - BNES 'BE
NEFE  EEERBEEOEE - 25
TRIEZHBENEBE ZMERE - &
ZeMIAMBEzAREED SRR (K
WEkR  HaEREBRRARER) £
ERBRRERBESER -

TXEFIAREZERR 2 BE - EE
BEEREEZSAR  UBRRKENE
2t R EE B HE i

5 13

i) EX¥ER
FEECHMBEERYBEBEREX
BMoLB T E Bt EEER
RAKERAE ZNERRL TE
x o

i) HMERERE
AEBZAHEEREREAAE
STABERECHBEEREYUER
HEHRZ2AABEHE Bt &
SEARERABSEERAR - &
BEEUTRREBEEZREHSE
B 18 & B o
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
ii)  Other price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined

based on the exposure to equity price risks at the

reporting date.

In respect of the financial assets at FVTPL, the

following table demonstrates the impact on loss

before tax and equity if the quoted market price of
the Group’s listed securities had been 5% (2011: 5%)

6. €A I A )
b) HBERERERFERIEE @)

H R ()
i) E AR E R (R

UTHBRESMBERERS A B
AZERERARZERAERE -

REBEAABEFABEEEZHBE
EMs TRETMMAERLHE
HFZFBHELATHRE% (=
——F:5%) HERBABERER

I

higher/lower. ZEE o
Carrying Increase
amount of (decrease) Increase
equity in loss (decrease)
investments before tax in equity
KRERE MRBL AT B =N
ZEREE i G2 # i OR2)
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
2012 —E2——fF
Investments listed in REBZLELHERE
Hong Kong
- financial assets at FVTPL - RARBETTAEBER
BREZHBEEE 76,039,014 3,801,951 3,801,951
2011 —E——fF
Investments listed in REBZ LHRE
Hong Kong
- financial assets at FVTPL —RAREFAER
BEZHMBEE 165,882,076 8,294,104 8,294,104
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b) Financial risk management objectives and b)

6. €M IHA @
BEEREERERRBEER @

policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations
as at 30 June 2012 in relation to each class of financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. In order
to minimize the credit risk, the Group regularly reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual financial assets
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The Group has
no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is
minimal.

=B
MREHFRZE——FXRA=THMNK
HETESZER  AXSEHRSETK
BEEMEAZS 2 RAGERBRACNEGE
MEMRRREIZEEZRERE - BF
FEERBEZERK RBEHR  £AEH
EHFESEERNGEEE 2 TWRERK
B URERT T REREELEZH 2R
BEEB RS AARAESRALRE
B2EERBE RNRERK AEBELESE
REFZEERKE  MEBERKRIDSRE
ZEEFH -

B E LA
REBEBEABBINARNNES  #iF
ESRERERBEEME 2 VE - AREE
EeRBESREBBE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. @I A @
b) Financial risk management objectives and b) BH¥EREEEEREEK(E)
policies (Continued)
Maturity analysis BH A 5
The following table details the Group’s remaining TSP AEE S HEEBR -5 ——

contractual maturities for its financial liabilities as at 30
June 2012 and 30 June 2011. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial

FERA=ZtTER=-2-——FXA=1H
ZHRBESHNZMER - TRDBEHBE
B2 RBRREREMMFRS  ZZWEE

liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group is s -
BENRBEAREENRHERAHIE -

required to pay.

As at 30 June 2012 R=F—-—=%XA=1H
On Total
demand/ One year contractual
within to Over undiscounted Carrying
one year two years two years cash flow amount
RER/ BRARER
-£R —FEMEF BBEWME HEeRELE REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Other payables HtnfEe 58 41,306,161 - - 41,306,161 41,306,161
Amounts due to directors ENESHE 2,305,960 - - 2,305,960 2,305,960
Obligations under MERNRE
finance leases 222,504 74,168 - 296,672 282,350
43,834,625 74,168 - 43,908,793 43,894,471
As at 30 June 2011 R-ZZEB-——FXA=*1H
On Total
demand/ One year contractual
within to Over  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years two years cash flow amount
RER/ BHARER
—FR —FERF BEME HEeR2NHE REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT BT
Other payables Hh 18 62,578,201 = = 62,578,201 62,578,201
Amounts due to BAESRE
investee companies DAFIE 49,639 = = 49,639 49,639
Amounts due to directors ERESEHE 2,222,418 = = 2222418 2,222,418
Obligations under MERNEE
finance leases 222,504 296,672 - 519,176 477,392
65,072,762 296,672 - 65,369,434 65,327,650
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
c) Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively; and

— the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices from observable current

market transactions as input.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group approximate their fair
values due to their immediate or short-term maturities.

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at end of the reporting
period across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments Disclosures,
with the fair value of each financial instrument categorized
in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to that fair value measurement. The levels are
defined as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical financial instruments;

— Level 2 (mid level): fair values measured using
quoted process in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on
observable market data; and

— Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is
not based on observable market data.

6. ERIE@®

c)

NRE
K EERMBEBZARBEEENT :
- EBEEEEERRGELNEERR

THEEEZHBEERYBRGEZ
MREDDHSERRTEEAE
RLBEEE K

- HiMBEERMBEBEZANE
BRAR2EBEARBTHNRITH
SRS EBRZERRERES MM
BE-

HRUBEER YK S ERN B R E R
BRI  AEEGFSUBRRTRAIZ
BUMBEERMBEAGZIRAEREARD
SREEE -

TREJINZFEHRELE BV KRS
HEHFETHREMIE HEAREZZE
ARBERBIZARE  URBEHAALE
STEBEECREEN ARZIAEER
PHEzEERMIAZAABTEZSH
ITEWKREME - BAREWT :

- B-E(&ReE)  £AR-®8IT
& EE&%%FE#&E% (REHE) 5
BZRRE

- BE-EMHE) FRAEUSMIA
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. €A I A )

c) Fair value (Continued) c) DREGE)
As at 30 June 2012
R-B-——FXA=1H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
el - py- B=E B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL RARMETAER
BECHKEE
- listed securities - EmES 76,039,014 - - 76,039,014
Available-for-sale financial assets ARHEECMEERE
- unlisted, quoted securities - LEmEEES - 40,008,480 - 40,008,480
76,039,014 40,008,480 - 116,047,494
As at 30 June 2011
R=ZZE——FXA=+H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EI=E FE B=E FEk]
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL BRANEFABR
BREZHMEEE
- listed securities - EmESH 165,882,076 = - 165,882,076
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEZHKEE
- unlisted, quoted securities - EHEERES - 106,000,000 - 106,000,000
165,882,076 106,000,000 - 271,882,076
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

7. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable on
investments and net loss on financial assets at FVTPL during

the year as follows:

EXHE
EEBEFERREZBERRERFEREZA
AEHAESREECHBEEFHEANT -

2012 2011
—EF-=F =
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Turnover B
Net loss on financial assets RARBEFABREEZ
at FVTPL MEEEFER (153,089,790) (2,309,927)
Dividend income from investments RELMEZZREBA
in listed securities 74,270 2,500
Interest income on amounts due from EWESRENRRIEZ
investee companies FME U A 921,052 805,944
Interest income on amounts due from RS N RRIEZ
an associate FE U A 3,134,595 =
Interest income on other receivables H b fE K18 2 R B WA 496,000 496,873
Bank interest income RITRE WA 1,581 20,446
(148,462,292) (984,164)

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocated to the Group’s business components and
for their review of the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major operations.

On adopting of HKFRS 8, the Group has identified the operating
and reportable segments as follows.

Investments in securities listed on
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Note 20)

Financial assets -
at FVTPL

Investments in unlisted securities

(Note 19)

Investments in an entity which the
Group has significant influence and that

Available-for-sale -
investment
Associate -

is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in
a joint venture (Note 17)

7 EBEHR

FEEBHEEDH  URBHTESIASE
BEBAMID 2 ERDBERERBRTZE
HRBD 2 RBE2EHABUBERMHEED
HWEH - M TESHRE2ABHBER 2%
BARBINEREIEB I EXBMEE -

REMBBYBHREERESRR  F5E2
EERAHABRDIMIFINOT :
BAREGRA — REBEIFLHEZZ
BREE ®& (Kfa£20)
MBEE
AEHERE - RFELTRBZ2Z2RE
(Bf=E19)
LN - REHFAKEEBEEARY
g MIMBRAATES
Bh¥oHEE (MF17)
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Investment in

8.

2 RPE R (@)

For the year ended 30 June 2012
BE-Z-“FXAZTHLEE

Investment in

financial assets available-for-sale Interests in
at FVTPL investments an associate Unallocated Total
REEME
FABREE RETMH REEAF
ZHBEE HERE Z2EH T am
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$
BT B B B BT
Segment revenue 2 EUE (153,013,939) 1,417,052 3,134,595 2,558,516 (145,903,776)
Administrative expenses THER - (2,250,000) - (15,453,094) (17,703,094)
Segment result PREE (153,013,939) (832,948) 3,134,595 (12,894,578) (163,606,870)
Net gain on disposal of HETHLERE
available-for-sale investments ZFWER - 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
Finance costs MERA (6,222,704) - - (37,790) (6,260,494)
Share of results of an EEBENREE
associate - - 49,073,667 - 49,073,667
(Loss) profit before tax BEE (B8 BH (159,236,643) 19,167,052 52,208,262 (12,932,368) (100,793,697)
Income tax Frig®t - - - - -
(Loss) profit for the year REE (B8) BA (159,236,643) 19,167,052 52,208,262 (12,932,368) (100,793,697)
Segment assets PREE 76,172,686 155,578,781 176,698,984 5,164,240 413,614,691
Segment liabilities AHERE 36,050,241 - - 7,844,230 43,894,471
Other segment information Hit D HER
Depreciation of plant and BERZERNE
equipment - - - 561,351 561,351
Purchase of plant and BERERZE
equipment - - - 437,713 437,713
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Investment in

8.

For the year ended 30 June 2011
FRAZTHLEE

BHE-Z—-

Investment in

2 RPE R (@)

financial assets  available-for-sale Interests in
at FVTPL investments an associate Unallocated Total
RERDAE
FTABREE REF{H REEAR
ZHKEE HERE R RAE k]
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT B
Segment revenue Gkl 6 (2,286,981) 1,302,817 - 1,417,828 433,664
Administrative expenses THER - - - (13,981,443) (13,981,443)
Segment result A% (2,286,981) 1,302,817 - (12,563,615) (13,547,779)
Finance costs RBHA (4,445,386) - - (157,524) (4,603,410)
Loss on written off THEEREE
of plant and equipment BB - - - (152,233) (152,233)
Share of results of an associate FEBENREE = = 41,674,842 = 41,674,842
(Loss) profit before tax BEBE (58) BA (6,732,867) 1,302,817 41,674,842 (12,873,372) 23,371,420
Income tax R - - - - -
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (BB BA (6,732,867) 1,302,817 41,674,842 (12,873,372) 23,371,420
Segment assets PHEE 166,002,753 145,216,577 135,138,434 33,058,325 479,416,089
Segment liabilities FHEE 58,503,193 49,639 - 6,774,818 65,327,650
Other segment information HttpBER
Depreciation of plant and BERRENE
equipment - - - 1,028,221 1,028,221
Purchase of plant and equipment ~ BEBEKRE - - - 1,609,979 1,609,979
Gain on disposal of plant HERE R ME
and equipment Wi - - - 250,000 250,000

Given the nature of the Group’s operation is investment

holding, there was no information regarding major customers

as determined by the Group.

ERAEENEBR/REER  ALAEEL
THREEMEEZFNESR -
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hfilg A
2012 2011
—EF-=F =
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Net sundry income HMIE U A FER 2,558,516 1,417,828
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. Bt & B &
2012 2011
—B—=f —E——f
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest expenses on borrowings EREFREBHEZEEZ
wholly repayable within five years: FMERX:
— bank overdrafts —RITEX 10,328 24,348
— debentures —EREH - 81,863
— margin accounts —FFRIRF 6,222,704 4,445,886
- finance leases —RERAY 27,462 51,313
6,260,494 4,603,410
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

11. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s (loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after

11. BRBLAT (B 1R) BF
AEEZAFE (FR)BRUNEMNHRGIA) :

charging (crediting):

2012 2011
—ZE—-= —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors’ emoluments (Note 15) BEEME (B1aE15) 3,075,980 2,418,000
Staff costs ETIRAK
Salaries, allowances and H& EZRREMBEF
other benefits 665,112 524,984
MPF Scheme contributions BESFTEMHR 19,396 23,131
Total staff costs BE T A 3,760,488 2,966,115
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN &
- audit service —ZEET & 480,000 450,000
— other services —H iR - 130,000
Depreciation of plant and equipment BEREETE
- owned assets -BHEEE 483,975 654,328
— leased assets —-HEEE 77,376 373,893
Minimum lease payments under HEMERBELEROZ
operating lease for rented premises BREHES 2,482,512 3,514,800
Net gain on disposal of HEAHEERE 2 FRE
available-for-sale investments (20,000,000) -
Impairment loss on prepayments, FEARIE - e REMER
deposits and other receivables REZREERE 2,250,000 =
Gain on disposal of HERE R FEz s
plant and equipment - (250,000)
Loss on written off of plant and HHME R R
equipment ZEE - 152,233
Share of income tax expense of BB E AR 2 BHR
an associate B 8,097,155 6,876,348
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

12. INCOME TAX 12. FI 8%

For the year ended 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011, no
provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Group did not derive any assessable
profits for the year ended 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011.

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before tax per the consolidated income statement as

BE_2-_HAA=TRAR=-F——%XA
ZTHLEFE ARFAEERBE-ZT-—-F
ANAZtTER=Z2——SAAZ=Z1THLFEYL
BEELEAERBET BRI BRRIE
ERNEHEME -

FERZEHEAXATEGS KR 2 BRB A
(BE) BFHEERMT :

follows:
2012 2011
—EF-=F =
HK$ HK$
BT BT

(Loss) profit before tax BREA (E5E) B (100,793,697) 23,371,420
Tax at domestic income tax rate R B 15 B 2£16.5%

of 16.5% STEZFHIE (16,630,960) 3,856,285
Tax effect of share of results of EhBENRXEZ

an associate T (8,097,155) (6,876,348)
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBTRAZHESLE

for tax purpose (3,463,657) (218,749)
Tax effect of expenses not FANBREZ 2 REE

deductible for tax purpose 44,107 213,224
Tax effect of tax losses REABRBEBZ

not recognised Mg E 18,858,305 2,641,078
Tax effect of origination and reversal RswEcEERERE

of temporary differences ZERER 41,440 331,043
Tax effect of loss not allowed RATFHBREBEZHREZE 9,247,920 53,467
Income tax P8 % - -

At 30 June 2012, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$170,127,753 (2011: HK$53,888,928) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

13

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2012 (2011: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

14. (LOSSES) EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 3R (F518) B F

The calculation of the basic losses per share is based
on the Group’s loss for the year attributable to the equity
holders of the Company of HK$100,793,697 (2011: profit
of HK$23,371,420) based on weighted average number of
812,443,487 (2011: 419,024,458) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

Diluted losses per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding due to the
effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. No adjustment
has been made to the basic (losses) earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2012 and
2011 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic (losses)
earnings per share amounts presented.

BREXRNBEEDRERNDNARERE AEWSL
FEK18100,793,697TEB T (= ——F ' B
F123,371,42087T) » HEEANCBITEBR
2 INFE 7 15 £1812,443 487/ (=T — — & :
419,024,4588%) 5t &

BEREEFEERGTRMEEEHESERNY
L% AREFTEZBERNMEFLIR M
B BE-Z-—-—FR-Z——5XA=1H
IHFE HRERTEREHSRER (FE)
Bz REEEREETE AL E
RBEHERER (BE) BRI 2518
fEHFAEE -

(Losses) earnings

per share

R (F5E) BRI
2012 2011
—B-C=F —B-—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Losses) earnings per share — basic Bk (FE) B &K (0.1241) 0.0558
— diluted —#E N/A ~EH N/A 7 iE A

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & # A1 4 BR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven

(2011: seven) directors were as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2012

15. EERSREEEN=

(a) EE=M £

ENHENT T B (ZE——F: £ H)

EECMENT :

BE-Z—-—FXHA=1+HLEE

Other emoluments

Httf <
Salaries,

allowances MPF

and other Performance Scheme
Fees benefits bonus contributions Total

Erc - 41 BES
ok REMER BMIEA TR @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

Executive directors: BITES:
Yau Chung Hong EBM
(Resigned on (R=ZF-=F%

12 March 2012) = A+ ZHEME) 675,387 - - - 675,387

Chui Tak Keung, Duncan RER
(Resigned on (R=Z-=%

27 July 2012) tAZt+tHEHME) 720,000 - - - 720,000
Kong Fanpeng LK 480,000 - - - 480,000
Liu Ta-pei 2IKEB 476,130 - - - 476,130
Yau Yan Ming, Raymond iR

(Appointed on (R=ZE—ZF%

5 March 2012 and “REHEZERR

resigned on —E-C-F

31 May 2012) TA=+—HEMR) 232,258 - - - 232,258

Non-executive director:  F#HTEE:
Hung Cho Sing HEE 190,667 - - - 190,667
(Appointed on (R=2——F
15 September 2011) NA+HEBEEME)
Independent non- BUFHTES:
executive directors:
Lam Kwan L 2 99,000 - - - 99,000
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan T 8% 42
(Resigned on (R=F-=F

3 April 2012) A= BEME) 69,667 - - - 69,667

Shiu Siu Tao ]
(Resigned on (R=F-——-F

30 December 2011) +ZB=1+HEE) 39,000 - - - 39,000

Ong Chi King I 53,871 - - - 53,871
(Appointed on (R=Z2—Z=F

20 January 2012) —B-t+RHEZHE)

Cheung Kwok Yu REIR 40,000 - - - 40,000
(Appointed on (RZE—ZF%

5 March 2012) =REREZME)

3,075,980 - - - 3,075,980

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8 A1 84 BR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

15. EERSREEEME @)

(a) EEHS (@)

For the year ended 30 June 2011

BE-Z——FXHA=1+HLEE

Other emoluments

Hitf <
Salaries,

allowances MPF

and other  Performance Scheme
Fees benefits bonus  contributions Total

e 2H BESE
wne REMEF BRI BEGEN A st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT

Executive directors: BITES:
Yau Chung Hong EBM 720,000 - - - 720,000
Chui Tak Keung, Duncan HiEE 720,000 = = 24,000 744,000
Kong Fanpeng LK 360,000 - - = 360,000
Liu Ta-pei 2IKE 360,000 - - - 360,000
Independent non- BYFHTES:
executive directors:

Lam Kwan Mmoo 78,000 = = = 78,000
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan 5k $8 % 78,000 = = = 78,000
Shiu Siu Tao BOHE 78,000 - - - 78,000
2,394,000 - - 24,000 2,418,000

No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the two years ended 30 June 2012 and 30 June
2011. No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss for office was paid or payable to any
director during the two years ended 30 June 2012 and 30
June 2011.

The remuneration of directors including the performance
bonus is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individual and market
trends.

BE_ZE-—_HXA=FTRAR=F——
FRA=+THLEMEE  YEEBHEY
EEREEAME - BE=—ZF—=5F7H
ZtERZZE-——FAA=+HLMF
% 18 1 7] 25 25 3 A S B A {E fT B
T EREMAREE 2 RBREDRE
-

EEME (BREAREA) DHFHMES
SRBMERA T 2RRER TSGR ME

=

E ©°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Senior management’s emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2011: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of

15. EERSREEEME @)

(b) BREEEMHS

FEBEEBEHFALEENE (=8
——F ME)EATEE GEMLH
BHRNLEY - Htp— B (ZB——&  —

the remaining one (2011: one) highest paid individuals was B)BREHFATZHENOT :
as follows:
2012 2011
—E—_F —_E——fF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries, allowances and e  RRBREMEF
other benefits 238,500 210,000
MPF Scheme contributions BESFEMER 9,825 3,000
248,325 213,000

The emoluments of the one (2011: one) highest paid
individuals fall in the following bands:

Emoluments bands B < 43 5
Nil - HK$1,000,000 221,000,000/ T

—B(CEE-——F -R)REFALZ

BEEUTAR :

Number of individuals

A
2012
—E-—F

2011
—_E——F

No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss for office was paid or payable to
any highest paid individuals (including directors and other
employees) during the two years ended 30 June 2012 and
30 June 2011.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8 A1 84 BR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. B E R R HE
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements and fixtures equipment Computers vehicles Total
HENELE HBAREE BLZERB EN AE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT

COST B
At 1 July 2010 R=Z-FFLtA—-H 1,184,360 240,541 127,807 143,530 2,783,425 4,479,663
Additions nE 1,145,497 246,335 163,963 54,184 - 1,609,979
Disposals HE& - - - - (1,545,425)  (1,545,425)
Written off i (1,184,360) (240,541) (112,608) (90,602) - (1,628,111)
At 30 June 2011 E“_ﬁ——ﬁ/‘—\ﬁz‘l'ﬁ

and at 1 July 2011 “Z--FtA-H 1,145,497 246,335 179,162 107,112 1,238,000 2,916,106
Additions /?T\‘E 276,334 72,401 36,270 52,708 - 437,713
At 30 June 2012 R-E-—fXA=+H 1,421,831 318,736 215,432 159,820 1,238,000 3,353,819
ACCUMULATED 2HE

DEPRECIATION
At 1 July 2010 R=Z-ZFtH-H 786,657 163,607 102,562 107,404 2,332,156 3,492,386
Charge for the year rEENE 501,409 72,238 43,913 36,768 373,893 1,028,221
Eliminated on disposals o R 8 - - - - (1,545,425)  (1,545,425)
Eliminated on written off TR 8 (1,082,747) (202,633) (106,907) (83,591) - (1,475,878)
At 30 June 2011 BA—%——E/—\H:JrEl

and at 1 July 2011 “2——%tA-H 205,319 33,212 39,568 60,581 1,160,624 1,499,304
Charge for the year $¢EW§ 350,069 67,604 48,781 17,521 77,376 561,351
At 30 June 2012 R-E-—FXA=+H 555,388 100,816 88,349 78,102 1,238,000 2,060,655
CARRYING VALUES REFE
At 30 June 2012 R-E-—#XA=1+H 866,443 217,920 127,083 81,718 - 1,293,164
At 30 June 2011 R=Z-—FxA=1H 940,178 213,123 139,594 46,531 77,376 1,416,802

The carrying value of assets held under finance leases included

in the total carrying value of motor vehicles of the Group as at
30 June 2012 is nil (2011: HK$77,376).

AEER=-Z

—ZHERNAZTHZAENERE

RENTEEREREANFACEEZRE

BS

ZER(=ZF

—— & 77,3768 T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

17. REBME R T 2

2012 2011
—B-CfF 2
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cost of investment in an RIELTEE QT
unlisted associate ZBE KA 4,500,000 4,500,000
Share of post-acquisition results EERERES 135,587,101 86,513,434
140,087,101 91,013,434
2012 2011
—g--% -B——%
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Amount due from an associate FE Uk B & N B 7R IE 36,611,883 44,125,000

The amount due from an associate was unsecured, bears

interest at 8% per annum for the period from 1 July 2011 to 30

June 2012.

As at 30 June 2012, the Group has interest in the following

RZB-——F+tA-BEZZ—Z-HXA=+
BER - U E D B ROE T B R R IR FF
RYEFE o

RZB—Z-FXA=1+H ' XEERUTEE

associate: ANTIEERER
Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation ~ Nominal value attributable
Form of and operations of issued  to the Group
business Class of &AL share capital K5E
Name of associate structure shares held %R 2817 FE{5#%  Principal activities
BENRER $¥EEAX MEROEN £2ud RAEE ZEA  FEED
CNI Bullion Limited (“CNI Bullion”)  Incorporated  Ordinary share ~ Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 30%  Provision of services
HELEEREBRAT HRLI A EBER BE 15,000,000 7T on trading of gold in
((FELFERE]D Hong Kong gold market
HREBEEMSZES
BERMRY

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8 A1 84 BR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WIS IRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The summarised unaudited financial information in respect of
the Group’s associate is set out below:

17. REFE DN R 2 & ()

AEEBRERR 2 REELTBENBETIR
W

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,814,400 4,419,587
Bank balances R 1T 4L BR 628,140 2,985,242
Trade and other receivables JE U B % T L At FE UK 634,753,836 411,190,473
Amounts due from shareholders FE UK BR R SR IE
other than the Group (REBRIN) - 11,798,379
Amounts due from parties related to FEURER R B AL 5 £ 4R 3
CNI Bullion BEEALTFE - 38,247,221
Total assets WERE 639,196,376 468,640,902
Amounts due to the Group EAAREBEFIE 36,611,883 44,125,000
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 51,984 131,984
Trade and other payables FE A BR 3% % HL At FE A3 5K 135,575,507 121,005,806
Total liabilities weE 172,239,374 165,262,790
Net assets EEFE 466,957,002 303,378,112
Group’s share of net assets REBEELEE QT
of an associate EEFHE 140,087,101 91,013,434
Turnover —E -0 258,037,638 224,691,671
Profit for the year REERF 163,578,890 138,916,140
Group’s share of results of rEBFREMN
an associate for the year N 49,073,667 41,674,842

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & # A1 4 BR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

18. LOANS RECEIVABLE

18. ERERFIE

2012 2011

—g-=-% -B——%

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Term loans (Note) TEHER (B 12,000,000 10,000,000

Analysed for report purpose TR Z DA

Current assets RBEE 12,000,000 10,000,000
Note: HaE

As at 30 June 2012, the term loan granted to Quidam Assets Limited R-ZE——®FXAB=+H"# FQuidam Assets

(“Quidam”) was HK$12,000,000. The term loan is unsecured, bears
interest at 8% (2011: 8%) per annum for the year ended 30 June 2012.

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Limited ([ Quidam |) 2 & # & 7 %12,000,0005&
T -BE-_ZE—_FXA=1THLFE THEXK
AEEFERREANESE(ZT——F :8E)sTE

19. ATt HERE

2012 2011
—Eg2—= —_E——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unlisted investments, at fair value BARBEIRZELTRE
(Note) (H1&E) 40,008,480 106,000,000
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TR DT
Current B 19,008,480 70,000,000
Non-current IR ED 21,000,000 36,000,000
40,008,480 106,000,000
The movement in the change of fair value is as follows: BB ERMT ¢
2012 2011
—B—=f —E——f
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At beginning of the year FH ek 106,000,000 121,305,087
Additions hE 19,008,480 -
Disposals HE (70,000,000) =
Decrease in fair values A RERD (15,000,000) (15,305,087)
At end of the year FRE 40,008,480 106,000,000

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8 A1 84 BR 2
Annual Report 2011/12 F &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Note:

The unlisted equity securities represent investments in private entities

as at 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011 details are as follows:

19. I ERE (@)

Mt -

FLETRARSERE-_ZE-—-FA=+tHAR=
E-—FRNA=+THERENVARRZFENT :

Percentage
of equity
Particulars interest
Place of of equity Acquisition attributable
Name incorporation interest held cost Fair value to the Group
&t i P IR A FEBERN
Z8 B3 3t B BRFE 832N MRE REBIL
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Quidam Assets Limited (note i) British Virgin Ordinary share 15,267,000 21,000,000 18.25%
(Wi&ti) Islands (“BVI”) E@BR (2011: 36,000,000)
EBELRE
247 Capital Limited (note ii) Hong Kong Ordinary share 19,008,480 19,008,480 3.98%
(Wi Zii) B EBER (2011: N/A)
(Z2——%: FER)
Notes: Kt -

(i) Quidam and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision
of factoring and guaranty services in the PRC. No dividend was
received during the year ended 30 June 2012 (2011: Nil).

The fair value was arrived at with reference to the valuation
carried out at the end of the reporting period by LCH (Asia-Pacific)
Surveyors Limited (“LCH”), independent valuers not connected
with the Group. LCH has appropriate qualification and recent
experience in the valuation of similar investments.

(ii) On 2 May 2012, the Company acquired a subsidiary, Long Surplus
Investments Limited, which held 3.98% beneficial interest in 247
Capital Limited. 247 Capital Limited is principally engaged in
investment holding which owns 100% equity interest in Go Markets
Pty Limited which carries on the business of online trading in
Australia. No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June
2012 (2011: Nil).

)

(if)

QuidamR EfB R A EER F BB R AR
BRERRE RBE-ZT-—-FxA=1+H
IEFEERTBEBEEMRE (ZF——F 1) -

DAMETYIREAN S BB R B 2 8 L R (E AT A
BRATAEMAERD A ([FERT ) RS WA
ET2GEFHE FRTEABESEERRASR
RO EEERREEE &R -

AZE——FHAZH  AAAKE KB

A FlLong Surplus Investments Limited @ 7%
AT H247 Capital Limited23.98%E 31
% © 247 Capital Limited = ERHEREER
#HBGo Markets Pty Limitedz100%/%# -
ZATANBENEERLEZ £ REE=Z
—ZFARB=THLEELEBBEABRE
ZE——F )

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & # A1 4 BR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(ii)  (Continued)

The fair value was arrived at with reference to the valuation
carried out at 30 April 2012 by Ample Appraisal Limited (“AAL”),
independent valuers not connected with the Group. AAL has
appropriate qualification and recent experience in the valuation of
similar investments.

The directors consider that the fair value at the end of reporting
period has no material difference.

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 30 June 2012 comprise:

Fair value: NRE
Listed securities held for trading BEEBEZzLmES
- listed in Hong Kong -REBLE™M

19. I ERE (@)

Kzt - (48)

(i) (&)
ARBENREASENERE B I (GEME
BRI EAERAT ([ERFIH D) R=_F—=-FN

A=+tHETZEEFE - ERFEARS
BERRAARAFEERREBEZESR -

ESRL RREPRZOAELESAER -

20. RAAREFABSREECUKEE

REZB—ZFXA=Z1+H RAABEFAER
REHBEERRE

2012 2011
—®-=F =
HK$ HK$
BT BT

76,039,014 165,882,076

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL were
determined based on the quoted market bid prices available on
the relevant exchanges at the end of the reporting period.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8 A1 84 BR 2
Annual Report 2011/12 F &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20 BAREFAEREB 2 BKEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) (&)
RoBE——GEXAS+AREZLmEsos

Particulars of the listed securities held as at 30 June 2012 are

as follows: BT :
Percentage
of equity
Particulars Market value interest
Place of of equity Acquisition as at 30 attributable
Name Notes incorporation interest held cost June 2012 to the Group
R-B-ZF AEEEMN
FERE ~A=tH RAER
A8 i3 LA it B BEFE R A ZW{E BAl
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Sage International Group Limited i Bermuda Ordinary share 88,866,988 21,110,124 13.635%
CEEREEERAR BRE EER
Longlife Group Holdings Limited ii Cayman Islands Ordinary share 21,201,348 14,179,700 8.688%
PLIREBERBRAR HEHE EER
Fairson Holdings Limited iii Cayman Islands Ordinary share 10,585,939 9,361,440 7.880%
THERERAT HERS el
Netel Technology (Holdings) Limited iv Cayman Islands Ordinary share 3,562,472 1,982,464 4.062%
ERNBRE(BR)BRAF RERS EBR
Heritage International Holdings Limited v Bermuda Ordinary share 60,000,000 18,800,000 2.561%
BEERERAA BRE EBR
China Automotive Interior vi Cayman Islands Ordinary share 1,749,221 1,264,880 2.156%
Decoration Holdings Limited HEHE EEk
hESERHEBRARAE
China Technology Solar Power vii Cayman Islands Ordinary share 2,948,237 1,601,435 1.428%
Holdings Limited HEHE TRk
RNEEZRRERDE
Birmingham International viii Cayman Islands Ordinary share 4,258,000 3,278,660 0.548%
Holdings Limited HEEES EBR
HARRKERBRA A
Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited ix Cayman Islands Ordinary share 1,834,900 1,526,400 0.494%
HEBNARERERDH RERS EER
Brillance Worldwide Holdings Limited X Cayman Islands Ordinary share 210,888 260,400 0.314%
EREZRBRAA REHS EEk
China Print Power Group Limited Xi Bermuda Ordinary share 275,115 228,800 0.164%
HEE DR EERRA R BRE EER

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & # A1 4 BR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20 B AREFAEREB 2 KEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) (&)

Particulars of the listed securities held as at 30 June 2012 are R-ZE——FRA=1+HEEZLTELEZFH

as follows: (Continued)

BT : (&)

Percentage

of equity

Particulars Market value interest

Place of of equity Acquisition as at 30 attributable

Name Notes incorporation interest held cost June 2012 to the Group

R=ZB-=% KEBERS

PR A ~A=tH RAER

A1 i3 E 17 B AL it B BEFE IR B A ZTh{E BAK

HK$ HK$
BT B

Z-Obee Holdings Limited Xii Bermuda Ordinary share 3,490,000 700,000 0.157%
REERERAA BRE EBER

Sun International Resources Limited Xiii Cayman Islands Ordinary share 1,588,086 891,100 0.143%
AFERERERAT HEeRE EER

CIG Yangtze Ports PLC Xiv Cayman Islands Ordinary share 440,121 432,900 0.113%
REEREORRA HeHE EER

National Arts Holdings Limited XV Bermuda Ordinary share 481,248 420,000 0.074%
BEERERAA BRE EER

China Star Entertainment Limited XVi Bermuda Ordinary share 2,859,862 711 0.0001%
HEEEERRAH BRE EER

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8 A1 84 BR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 & Z =% —

—FERNAZTRLFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

Sage International Group Limited (stock code: 8082) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the operation of cemetery
and funeral services in the PRC and trading of automobile and
related accessories. No dividend was received during the year
ended 30 June 2012. According to the latest published financial
statements of Sage International Group Limited, it had net assets
value of approximately HK$90,506,000.

Longlife Group Holdings Limited (“Longlife”) (stock code: 8037)
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture,
research and development and distribution of consumer cosmetic,
health related products, capsules products, health supplement
wine and dental materials and equipment and operates only in
the PRC and trading of securities in Hong Kong. No dividend was
received during the year ended 30 June 2012. According to the
latest published financial statements of Longlife, it had net assets
value of approximately HK$97,729,000.

Fairson Holdings Limited (stock code: 8132) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in manufacture and sales of power and
data cords in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2012.
According to the latest published financial statements of Fairson
Holdings Limited,
HK$64,419,786.

it had net assets value of approximately

Netel Technology (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8256)
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in trading of
telecommunication equipment and provision of long distance call
service in Hong Kong. No dividend was received during the year
ended 30 June 2012. According to the latest published financial
statements of Netel Technology (Holdings) Limited, it had net

assets value of approximately HK$1,686,000.

Heritage International Holdings Limited (stock code: 0412) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property investment,
investments in securities, money lending, investment holding
and Chinese medicine clinic operations. No dividend was
received during the year ended 30 June 2012. According to the
latest published financial statements of Heritage International
Holdings Limited,it had net assets value of approximately
HK$1,013,874,000.

China Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8321) and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
manufacture and trading of nonwoven fabric products used
in automotive interior decoration parts and infrastructure. No
dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2012.
According to the latest published financial statements of China
Automotive Interior Decoration Holdings Limited, it had net assets
value of approximately HK$137,940,246.

20 RAREFAEBEEREZUHBEE
(#&)
Bt -

)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vii) China Technology Solar Power Holdings Limited (stock code:

(viii

(ix)

(xi)

=

8111) and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in sales of
self-service automatic teller machine systems and printing
system; provision of hardware and software technical support
services; and power in automotive interior decoration parts and
infrastructure system integration business. No dividend was
received during the year ended 30 June 2012. According to the
latest published financial statements of China Technology Solar
Power Holdings Limited, it had net assets value of approximately
HK$218,434,000.

Birmingham International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2309) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in professional football
operation, apparel sourcing and trading, entertainment and media
services. No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June
2012. According to the latest published financial statements of
Birmingham International Holdings Limited, it had net assets value
of approximately HK$339,605,000.

Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (stock code: 0309) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in Provision of cleaning and
related services; medical waste treatment services and waste
treatment services, development of advertisement and information
broadcasting on indoor and outdoor television screens in the Asia-
Pacific Region. No dividend was received during the year ended 30
June 2012. According to the latest published financial statements
of Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited, it had net assets value of
approximately HK$271,137,000.

Brilliance Worldwide Holdings Limited (stock code: 8312) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in garment manufacturing.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June
2012. According to the latest published financial statements of
Brilliance Worldwide Holdings Limited, it had net assets value of
approximately HK$46,842,000.

China Print Power Group Limited (stock code: 6828) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in printing of books and
manufacturing of specialised products such as pop-up children
books and stationery. No dividend was received during the year
ended 30 June 2012. According to the latest published financial
statements of China Print Power Group Limited, it had net assets
value of approximately HK$210,216,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 & Z =% —

—FERNAZTRLFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

The

Z-Obee Holdings Limited (stock code: 0948) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the development and production of
software and solutions for mobile appliances, mobile headset,
hardware, mobile headset and mobile headset components.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2012.
According to the latest published financial statements of Z-Obee
Limited Holdings Limited, it had net assets value of approximately
US$110,578,829.

Sun International Resources Limited (stock code: 8029) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
computer hardware and software services, hotel operation and
management services, mining iron ores and minerals, production
and distribution of motion pictures and model agency services,
and other film related services. No dividend was received during
the year ended 30 June 2012. According to the latest published
financial statements of Sun International Resources Limited, it had
net assets value of approximately HK$1,619,905,338.

CIG Yangtze Ports PLC (stock code: 8233) and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in port construction and operations.
No dividend was received during the year ended 30 June 2012.
According to the latest published financial statements of CIG
Yangtze Ports PLC,
HK$158,094,000.

it had net assets value of approximately

National Arts Holdings Limited (stock code: 8228) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in film production and
distribution, provision of artistes management, advertising and
promotion services, provision of studio, theme park and hotels,
digital solution services and investment in securities. No dividend
was received during the year ended 30 June 2012. According to
the latest published financial statements of National Arts Holdings
Limited, it had net assets value of approximately HK$500,061,000.

China Star Entertainment Limited (stock code: 0326) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the distribution of motion,
pictures and television, drama series and video rights, the
provision of post-production services and hotel services in Macau.
No dividend was received during the year. According to the latest
published financial statement of China Star Entertainment Limited,
it had net assets value of approximately HK$2,274,909,000.

Group has pledged the financial assets at FVTPL of

HK$76,017,594 (2011: HK$161,592,136) to secure the margin
payable granted to the Group.

20 BAREFABREEEZUKEE
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(xiii

(xiv

(xv)

(xvi

BMEZRARAR (RRAR 0948)&E|3ﬁ
BRAATEREHHHAENEERARD
BER  FHEMSH - 7J|L§3H%&¥%§1¢TEL\
BAFR RBE-ZT—-FXA=+tHLHF
ERIEBEEMRE - RIEMEZRERA
ARCHTIRcUBER HEEFENA
110,578,829 7T ©

) AEEEIBREREMAE (RENRR : 8029) RE
MELRAEERBRESKEEGRE  BE
KEREERYE BREBORBYERSE S &
FERETEZRERSZECERBEUARIRHA D
EYHBERE - RBE=-T——F~A=1+H
1E 5 B R R UG BE AR R B o ARIE KBS IR E
RERARABEHAR 2B HREK  HEETF
E#%1,619,905,33858 7T °

FEEZBOERAR (Hﬁ%—‘eﬁ%ﬁ 18233) R H
MEBARFERZBOHERLE -REE=

2—_$/—\ﬁ:+amigwjt%u&ﬂmﬁmﬁ
S REFHEEZRBOERARARAHTIZZ
Bk HEEFELN$H158,094,0008 T ©

-

EEERBIRAE (BREN : 8228) RHME
NAETERBRESFRERRET  REEA

BE BERSERY REFER  TEAQ
BEREE  BBEBRATRBRERESFRE - R
BE-_Z——HFXA=1tHILEERALEKRE
ERIRRE - RIZEEERERA = HIFLE I
2B E - HEEFELN5500,061,000

JC °

0326) & 5[
SHREEE

) FEIEEBAERAL T (RERR :
BAREERERTHE BF -
RIGEER - RERHRERE - URRPTE
JE ARG o FAF A I R R BUE AT AR 2. o 1R 4B R El
EEEERARSAHHBE 2 HBERER  HE
EFEN52,274,909,0005 7T ©

AEECHEFRAABABREEZHKE
E76,017,594%8 5t (ZF——%F : 161,592,136
BT EARNEEERESTREEZER -

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & # A1 4 BR 2
Annual Report 2011/12 % $&
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

21. BAARIE - RERH M ERKE

RECEIVABLES
2012 2011
—E—_F —_E——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments FE 1+ FRE 609,560 115,192
Deposits b 1,078,376 808,868
Other receivables H b fE SR8 114,726,612 54,415,202
116,414,548 55,339,262
Less: Impairment loss recognised B ERERREEE (9,564,235) (9,564,235)
106,850,313 45,775,027

Less: Shown under current assets

B FIRREBEERT

(81,850,313)

(45,775,027)

Shown under non-current assets

JRFRBEEET

25,000,000

The movement in the impairment loss of other receivables is as

follows:

At beginning of the year
and at end of the year

FRNEHR
FREER

HttEWREZ REBEEBNT

2012
—B—-=fF
HK$

T

9,564,235

2011
—E——F
HK$

BT

9,564,235

The carrying amounts of prepayment, deposits and other

receivables at the end of the reporting period approximated
their fair values. As at 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011, other
receivables of HK$9,564,235 were determined to be impaired.

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8 A1 84 BR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 & Z =% —
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21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Included in other receivables are the following advances to third
parties of the Group:

(a)

(b) Advance of HK$7,643,233 (2011:

(c)

(d)

(e)

Advance of HK$2,000,000 (2011: HK$2,000,000) to
independent third parties is unsecured,
repayable on demand. Accumulated impairment loss of
HK$2,000,000 (2011: HK$2,000,000) was provided in the
previous years, which net off to nil outstanding amount
as at 30 June 2012. During the year ended 30 June
2012, no additional impairment loss (2011: Nil) has been
recognised.

interest-free and

HK$7,647,233) to an
independent third party, is secured by personal guarantee
from an independent third party, bears interest at 8%
(2011: 8%) per annum and repayable on demand.
Accumulated impairment loss of HK$6,200,000 (2011:
HK$6,200,000) was provided in the previous years, which
net off to an outstanding amount of HK$1,443,233 (2011:
HK$1,447,233) as at 30 June 2012. During the year ended
30 June 2012, no additional impairment loss (2011: Nil) has
been recognised.

Advance of HK$1,364,235 (2011: HK$1,647,523) to
independent third parties is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Accumulated impairment loss of
HK$1,364,235 (2011: HK$1,364,235) was provided in the
previous years, which net off to nil outstanding amount
(2011: HK$283,288) as at 30 June 2012. During the year
ended 30 June 2012, no additional impairment loss (2011:
Nil) has been recognised.

Interest receivables of HK$3,075,667 (2011:
HK$1,301,944), are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. During the year ended 30 June 2012, no
impairment loss (2011: Nil) has been recognised.

Margin receivables of HK$133,672 (2011: HK$120,677) are
generated from investment in financial assets at FVTPL,
with interest rate ranged from 0.001% to 0.003% (2011:
0.001% to 0.003%) per annum for the year ended 30 June
2012.

21. FNE

HtEWE

RIE ~ RE R H MWK IR (1)

SHBE TR TFAEEE=1 22

i
FA -

(a)

(b)

(d)

HFBIE = 2#5%2,000,00058 T (=
T ——4£:2,000,000/8T) BHEEE - R
EREREREE R-ZZT—Z-FxA
=+tH BEEFEREZRREESRE
2,000,0005% 7t (=& — — £ : 2,000,000
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BEBE(ZE——F 1 )

BT B =T 2 #507,643,23378
T(=ZE——%F :7,647,2338B ) NEB
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B FEERE 2 R5HREE 86,200,000
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i——i 1,647, 523,%75)#,%&# %

FEREREBE-R-ZT—Z-FxAH
:-t— B t&if;ﬁéﬁziﬁiﬁiﬁgﬂé

1,364,235 T (ZZF— — % : 1,364,235
BT EERBRERB L (2B ——F:
283,288 L) cMBEZE=-Z—Z=-H XA

=ZtHLEERE  LEBIFEIMNERS
B(CE——F 1 8)-
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REZ -REBE-ZT-—-—FX-A=1+HL
FEHE TERITMAERESE(ZF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

1)

The outstanding balance of HK$12,000,000 (2011:
HK$16,000,000) due from the purchaser of King Alliance
Resources Limited (“King Alliance”) is interest-free. The
repayment date has been extended to 30 April 2013 and
the purchaser has committed to settle the outstanding
balance on or before the extended repayment date.

The outstanding balance of HK$7,693,825 (2011:
HK$11,693,825) due from the purchaser of Winwide
Management Limited (“Winwide”) is interest-free. The
repayment date has been extended to 30 June 2013 and
the purchaser has committed to settle the outstanding
balance on or before the extended repayment date.

The outstanding balance of HK$7,000,000 (2011:
HK$12,000,000) due from the purchaser of Easymade
Group Limited (“Easymade”) is interest-free. The
repayment date has been extended to 31 March 2013 and
the purchaser has committed to settle the outstanding
balance on or before the extended repayment date.

The outstanding balance of HK$31,000,000 (2011: Nil) due
from the purchaser of IIN Network Education (BVI) Limited
(“lIN”) is interest-free. Pursuant to the agreement signed
with the purchaser, the deal to sell IIN was completed
on 30 December 2011. The repayment date has been
extended where HK$20,000,000 will be due within the
next financial year and HK$11,000,000 will be due on
30 September 2013. The purchaser has committed to
settle the outstanding balance on or before the extended
repayment date.

The outstanding balance of HK$36,500,000 (2011: Nil) due
from the purchaser of UCCTV Holdings Limited (“UCCTV”)
is interest-free. Pursuant to the agreement signed with the
purchaser, the deal to sell UCCTV was completed on 25
December 2011. The repayment date has been extended
where HK$22,500,000 will be due within the next financial
year and HK$14,000,000 will be due on 31 December 2013.
The purchaser has committed to settle the outstanding
balance on or before the extended repayment date.
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22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM INVESTEE COMPANIES
As at 30 June 2012, the amount of HK$716,808 is reclassified
as prepayments, deposits and other receivables due to the
disposal of the available-for-sale investments completed on 25
December 2011. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

BANK BALANCES

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits of
HK$724,736 (2011: HK$14,486,942) at prevailing market rate.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables and accruals include HK$36,050,241 (2011:
HK$58,503,193) of margin payable which are generated from
investment in financial assets at FVTPL with interest rate
ranged from 7.5% to 12% per annum for the year ended 30 June
2012 (2011: 8.00% to 11.25%).

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on
demand.

AMOUNTS DUE TO INVESTEE COMPANIES
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on
demand.

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

EBlWESREARNRE
RZZB-—Z-FXA=1H BARLETHEE
BREER=—Z——F+-A=+HEHEMA &
BAFIE716,808 B TE EH D B AENRE
ReREAMBKIE - ZERETHEIKHF
RERERERMEE-

RITH R
RITHEBERRBETH BRI B ZEHET
FF724,73678 T (ZF— —1F : 14,486,942}
JT) °©

HittEHREBERETEHR
HitERRERESERGEHZE -2 —=
FRAZTHLEERBRERRAAME
ANEREEBEHBEEMEEZERNFRR
1836,050,2418 5t (=& — — & : 58,503,193
B  FRNERISEZ12E(ZZE——F:
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27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
For the year ended 30 June 2012, the average effective
borrowing rate was 7.23% (2011: 10.48%) per annum. Interest
rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into
for contingent rental payments.

27. MMEHNEAIE
BE-ZE-—-—F~A=1tHLEE FHE
BEERSERNR7.23E(ZF——F :10.48
B)  FEREHNAHRE - 2MBEETRE
EEREER VBT USARBSARZH -

Present value of

Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
BREEEZFRE BREEEXNREZRE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F--Ff —F-——% Z%B-=-fFf =FT——F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Amounts payable under finance RERNT 2B
leases: HIE
Within one year —F R 222,504 222,504 282,350 195,041
More than one year but ZR—F
less than five years BLRARE 74,168 296,672 - 282,351
296,672 519,176 282,350 477,392
Less: Future finance charges o R EE A (14,322) (41,784)
Present value of lease HAOREZRE
obligations 282,350 477,392
Less: Amounts due within B AR —FREZE
one year shown under It 514 577 &
current liabilities EEZHE (209,260)  (195,041)
Amounts due after one year —FRFHEERE 73,090 282,351
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. A
Number of
shares Amount
R & B Gk
HK$
BT
ORDINARY SHARES EBERER0ET
OF HK$0.1 EACH
Authorised: EE
At 1 July 2010, at 30 June 2011 R=Z-ZFFtA—H-
and at 30 June 2012 —E-—FXA=THEK
—E-—_H%XA=+H 2,000,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR
At 1 July 2010 R-ZE—ZEFtH—H 315,082,178 31,508,218
Issue of shares upon exercise of HITEBRERTRG
share option (Note (a)) (K13 (a))
7,600,000 shares on R-ZE-—ZEFNAZ-Z+=HIR0422/8 T 7,600,000 760,000
22 September 2010 £%177,600,0008% A% 19
at HK$0.422
1,900,000 shares on R-ZZE—ZF+HAT+HMHA%R0.48EB T 1,900,000 190,000
14 October 2010 2%£171,900,000% % 19
at HK$0.48
6,931,580 shares on R-ZE——F=HAZ-+=H#0.263%& T 6,931,580 693,158
23 March 2011 #%£176,931,580% f% 19
at HK$0.263
Issue of shares by placement DEERXEBITRAD
(Note (b)) (B3 (b)) 64,910,000 6,491,000
Issue of shares by right issue DUt iR 5 TR A
(Note (c)) (Bt2E(c)) 194,746,089 19,474,609
At 30 June 2011 and R-ZZBE-——FXA=1H
at 1 July 2011 K—ZFE——FtHA—H 591,169,847 59,116,985
Issue of shares by placement LR & A X BITR M
(Note (d)) (W3(d)) 250,000,000 25,000,000
Issue of shares by placement UEERXBITRA
(Note (e)) (BtaE(e)) 84,116,984 8,411,698
At 30 June 2012 RZE—Z—FX<A=+H 925,286,831 92,528,683
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

Share options were exercised to subscribe for 7,600,000,
1,900,000 and 6,931,580 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the
Company on 22 September 2010, 14 October 2010 and 23 March
2011 respectively at exercise prices of HK$0.422, HK$0.48 and
HK$0.263 per share, resulting in a total cash consideration of
HK$5,942,205.

Pursuant to a placing agreement signed on 1 December 2010,
64,910,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were placed at
HK$0.35 per share on 22 December 2010. The shares were issued
and allotted to not less than 6 placees, comprising institutional and
individual investors who are independent third parties and are not

connected with the Group.

Pursuant to the proposed rights issue announced by the Company
on 12 January 2011, the Company issued 194,746,089 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at an issue price of HK$0.3 per

share on the basis of one share for every two shares held.

The rights issue was completed on 23 March 2011 with gross
proceeds of HK$58,423,827 raised before deduction of incidental

share issuance expenses.

Pursuant to a placing agreement signed on 9 June 2011,
250,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were placed at
HK$0.30 per share on 25 July 2011. The shares were issued and
allotted to one institutional investor who is an independent third

party and is not connected with the Group.

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement signed on 2 May
2012, 84,116,984 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were placed at
HK$0.226 per share on 16 May 2012. The shares were issued and
allotted to a vendor who is an independent third party and is not

connected with the Group.
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28. & (@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BRESIN=-Z-—ZFNRA=-+=H =F
—EF+AtTNBER=F——F=A=+=H
4T fE - L3R 57,600,000 ~ 1,900,00088 &
6,931,580 R AN A B REEIETZEBER
% HETEERESR0.422/87T ~ 0.48B TR
0.26378 7T » EEHE £ {85,942,2058 T °

BRER-—Z-ZE+-_A-ABT2RER
BEARAAR-E-—ZE+-A=-+=—AUE
f%0.357%8 st Ei 564,910,000 = AR E{E0.178 T
ZEBRG - ZERODBEAIREZETFARIRN
AREARA  BRERBREARESE  9AB
ME=FH BEAEEHEEE -

REAQRAR=-Z——F—A+=-A2Hz
EEMR AQARBITESRIBTRT
194,746,089 B R EE0. 1B T 2 EBR
H BEELAEBHEMBRROERE —KRKRHY -

HREVR=-Z-——F=A=+=H%RMK K
MHERDBITRAXA SRS ZMEHERES
58,423,827 T °

RER-ZF-—FEXANABET2RER
FOADARZE--—FLtA=-tHEAMN
FROIETA-EHRBREERTRESR
250,000,000/ I EE0.178 T 2 EER A
ZHBREERBUE=N - BEAKEHE
BE -

RER-Z-—FREA-AFTZE&EWHH
AARAR-ZZF-—-FHA+NHUZTHK0.226
BrE—-EEREES4,116,984R B REEO.1
BR2EBRRN ZEBERRBUE=S BHRE
REEBEREE -



29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(a) Scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 30
September 2003 (the “Adoption Date”), the directors of
the Company may, at their absolute discretion, invite any
employee (whether full-time or part time, including any
executive director), any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive directors), any supplier of
goods or services, any customer and any person or entity
that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group to the maximum of 10% of the shares
in issue as at the date of commencement of listing of
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange and subject
to renewal with shareholders’ approval.

The Scheme became unconditional upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options to any eligible participant in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted must not
represent more than 10% of the nominal amount of all the
issued shares of the Company (the “10% Limit”) as at the
date on which trading in the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange first commenced. The Company may
seek approval from its shareholders in a general meeting
to refresh the 10% Limit at any time in accordance with
the Listing Rules. The maximum number of unexercised
share options currently permitted to be granted under the
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

29. B R E
(a) =t&

RER-Z2Z2=FAA=1TH(HHKA
) R 2BRESE ARRESTR
ERBRFETARES (TRERIRE
BEREAEMATES)  FAFMTES
(BRBIYFHTES)  EAERIR
Bl  FAEFREMAREERE
MR BRFEBBEMIEZALTHE
B EMBREURBALAIRG - LR
RERRARDRBIFAEABEHTERS
BRITRD10%2RM - MEHAFRRZ
ok o

ZETEIERADARDEBR T £ &
B AR EIRAE - BRIFEEHIER] - BRI
SIS N BB 10FDREN -

RIBZERE12E B AT BITF
EEERSHEZESRMDEE IUR
NEREMEEE BITRH Z1%ABR
MEMEEXSHEEE—SREBBI
RElzBREEASFRERBRAS L
HEBRFT AT - RITESFRITZHRE
BREMIETURITROZAE  R5
BBAARRDRERMETRSEH
AATMAECBTRMAOEEZ10% ([10%
ZER]D - AATRERIBLTRE - BE
BHEERRABRRAE LEHZ10%2
LR - BEEEREBEZEFREZR
ETEEREZERSHEE @ DHERES
ETEREAQTTECRITRME30%ZE
E °
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(a) Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, are subject to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is a proposed
grantee of the share options). In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The offer of a grant of share options shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 28 days from the date of the
offer of the grant. The grant of share options is effective
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less than
the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant of the share options, which must be a
trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the share options; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(a) Scheme (Continued)
Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 8 October 2003.

(b) Options granted

29. B RS E (@)
(a) —I'_J (%&)
R EE— P 2H#BERERDAM
HEpRHA—ZSZS=F+ANEZBR
ERPHEE -

(b) B zBRE

Summary of the share options granted is as follows: BFHeBREMEZNT :
(i) Movements in share options (i) BREZZF
2012 2011
—E-=F —EF——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Number of share options BREHE
At beginning of the year FEe 32,000,000 13,300,000
Adjustment for Rights issue (Note) MR EEZRE (ML) - 3,131,580
Granted 2&H - 32,000,000
Exercised 21T E - (16,431,580)
At end of the year FREERR 32,000,000 32,000,000
Notes: Miat -

As a result of the Rights issue completed in March 2011,
adjustments in the share option exercise price and the
number of shares in the options outstanding are required
to be made under the terms of the Share Option Scheme in
accordance with Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules and a
supplementary guidance issued by the Stock of Exchange
on 5 September 2005. The calculation of the adjustments
in respect of all the existing share options granted by the
Company had been performed in accordance with the
regulatory rule and guidance, and reviewed and confirmed by
external professional persons pursuant to Rule 17.03(13) of
the Listing Rules. The key summary of related adjustments

had been announced by the Company on 23 March 2011.

ET#HQE%:E——EZH%&’*E}F
FHRAIE17.03(13) RREER TR =
ZREABRERARHE @RS v$

RAARBBRETE 2 HRAAZERE
TEERERTEBREZRAEE -
RADAREZ 2R AERETE
AEDETEERAIRESIMEL I
RIE LT RBISE17.03(13) KR E LI
BEEALEZRBIZ - AQRBRAER=ZF
——F=fA=-+=HAHHEBEARE
ZHE
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(b) Options granted (Continued)

(ii) Details of the share options granted and the share

options outstanding as at 30 June 2012 and 30 June

2011 are as follows.

Grant Exercise
date price
REAH g
13 June 2011 HK$0.365

“E--ERATZA 0365E%

Grant Exercise
date price
RAAH e
18 May 2010 HK$0.48*

“E-ZERRTNA 048BT

26 May 2010 HK$0.422
F-3F 042287
EAZTAA

13 June 2011 HK$0.365

ZE--E5ATZH 036587

29. ERRfESHE (@)
(b) B ZHERE @)
(i) R=2—-FX~A=+BR=-%
——FXRA=ZTHEREREKRIT

EZBEBREFBNT :
Number of share options
BREHR
Exercisable As at 30 As at 30
period June 2011 Granted Lasped Cancelled  Adjusted Exercised June 2012
TSR RZB--% b 3 8 ik gfiff R=%-zf
ABZtA RA=TH
13 June 2011 - 32,000,000 - - - - - 32,000,000
12 June 2013
ZE--ExBtZA-
“E-ZERATCA
32,000,000 - - - - - 32,000,000
Number of share options
EREHE
Exercisable As at 30 As at 30
period June 2010 Granted Lasped  Cancelled  Adjusted  Exercised  June 2011
sk R=Z-ZF i P i Eik Bfiff N=%--f%
AB=1H AB=1H
18 May 2010 - 5,700,000 - - - 3,131,580  (8,831,580) -
17 May 2013
ZE-SERRTNR-
ZE-ZERATLA
26 May 2010 - 7,600,000 - - - - (7,600,000) -
25 May 2013
ZE-ZERACtRE-
Z5-ZERA-1EA
13 June 2011 - - 32,000,000 - - - - 32,000,000
12 June 2013
ZE--ERATER-
ZE-ZERATZA
13,300,000 32,000,000 - - 3131,580 (16,431,580) 32,000,000

As a result of the rights issue proposed by the

Company on 12 January 2011, the exercise price of
outstanding share options granted on 18 May 2010
was adjusted from HK$0.48 per share to HK$0.263
per share, and the number of outstanding share
options was adjusted from 3,800,000 to 6,931,580. The
aforesaid adjustments became effective on 23 March

2011.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(b) Options granted (Continued)
(ii) (Continued)

The average fair value of the share options granted
during the year is HK$0.063 each. Options were
priced using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing
Model. As it requires the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the volatility of share prices,
changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate.

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility of the share prices of the Company over a
period that is equal to the expected life before the

grant date.

The vesting period of the share options is from the date
of grant until the commencement of the exercise period.
The share options would be fully exercisable from the

commencement of the exercise period.

There were no shares options granted during the year (fair
value of the shares options granted in 2011 determined
by using the Black-Scholes valuation model was
HK$2,031,456 of which approximately HK$2,031,456 was

recognised in the profit of loss).

30. NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value is based on the net asset
value of the Group as at 30 June 2012 of HK$369,720,220
(2011: HK$414,088,439) and on the number of 925,286,831
(2011: 591,169,847) ordinary shares in issue as at 30 June

2012.

29. R AESHE ()
(b) B2 B HE ()

30.

(if)

(#&)
RERABHWBREARLBAFEY
S R0.063B T - BREZAME D
R-SHNEAREEEREREE -
CERBASEZBNER
ERAERNESEE  T8@m AR
RNESETAEEATEAAENT
o

BAHRERREARNRBRE - RUE
AR ERNELRETE R
R BHATN AR FES -

BRENEBHARE 2 RET  BEET
ARG o BRERTEMBGKIE » AL
2EATHE -

RERNLESEHEMBRE(R=2——
FREBRENAAEBEUAEN R - SRS
HERNEE 52,031,456 87T EFH
2,031,456 TE RIBHE AR o

BREEFE
BREEFEDIRBEAEER-_Z——_FXA
=+ Az EEFHE369,720,220/8 T (ZF——
F 414,088,439 T) RN =—FE——F A8
=+ HE#TEEKREE925,286,831R (=&
——% :591,169,847/R) 5T & -
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

31. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 31. WEBHEB 2 7

On 2 May 2012, the Company issued ordinary shares with
aggregate principal amount of HK$19,008,480 as consideration
for the acquisition of Long Surplus Investments Limited which
held 3.98% beneficial interest in 247 Capital Limited.

The fair value of the net assets acquired in the transaction are

R-ZZB-—-FHA-H AQRBTLAELES
$£19,008,4808 7t 2 E B I 1 B W BELong
Surplus Investments Limited (HEH# A
247 Capital Limited 2 3.98% % #) Z X1 °

REXZEBERBZEEFRIAAREBNT :

as follows:
HK$
BT
Purchase consideration WS R E
Issuance of ordinary shares by placing UREFXNBTEBR 19,008,480
Recognised amounts of identifiable Rz ABAEER
assets acquired and FiREzEBEZEBRHE
liabilities assumed
Available-for-sale investments EHERE 19,018,800
Other payables and accruals Hih BT RIEREFTER (10,320)
19,008,480

The acquisition of Long Surplus Investments Limited on 2 May
2012 does not give rise to any revenue or profit or loss on the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year.

Had Long Surplus Investments Limited been consolidated from
1 July 2011, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income would show a loss of HK$5,000.
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Investments Limitedif EAARFEZHEE R
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#Long Surplus Investments Limited ~ £ 4&
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32. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to those disclosed in other sections of the

financial statements’ the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties and connected parties

during the year:

Tripod Management Limited
(“Tripod”)
Investment management
fee paid

China Angel Fund Management
(HK) Company Limited
(“CAFM”)

Investment management
fee paid

Quidam
Interest income from

Fortel Solutions Limited
Service income

China Private Equity Investment
Holdings Limited
Service income

Athens Capital Limited
Consultancy fee paid

CNI Securities Group Limited
Commission expenses

CNI Bullion Limited
Interest income from

SEREEEERAA
(ECE-))
XNREEEE

TERXEESERE
(BEB)BRLA
(TCAFM])
XNREEEE

Quidam

FEWA

BREASRERAF
AR5 W A

BREHEREZERERAH

BR 75 W A

SHEXERAT
ENEBREM

TEETEFEEBRALF
ek X

HEIL T SREFRAE
FEUWA

2. AEALTRBAERS

(a) MREMBHRREMEHEAFREEN B
REEAREBHEFERIRBEEALTE

TZRSWT :

2012
—_Eg—-=

Notes HK$
i3 5
i 431,000
i 40,000
iii 921,052
iv 120,000
iv 360,000
V -
Vi -
vii 3,134,595

2011
—E——F
HK$

&I

480,000

800,000

240,000

720,000

100,000

454,370
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

32. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties as at the end of

the reporting period are as follows:

Mr. Chui Tak Keung, Duncan,
an executive director of the
Company (“Mr. Chui”)
(Resigned on 27 July 2012)
Amount due to

Mr. Yau Chung Hong,
an executive director of the
Company (“Mr. Yau”)
(Resigned on 12 March 2012)
Amount due to

Quidam
Loan advance to
Interest receivable from

Orbrich Finance Group Limited
(“Orbrich Finance”)

Amount due to

UCCTV
Amount due from
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ARBZHITES
wEEmaE THREED

2.BEAEATRBERS (&)

(b) BEREHAR HBEELNWRERSN

mr

Notes

BraE

(R=B-——-FtA=-t+tRHEE)

FE A+ 5018

ARBRZHITES
ESmEE(TEEE]D

viii

(R=Z2—Z=F£=ZF +Z=H#I)

B+ FR1E

Quidam
FT{EE K
FE USRI 2

Orbrich Finance Group Limited
(['Orbrich Finance )
P RRIE

UCCTV
F& U 5k 78

Xi

2012
—E—-—F
HK$

BT

2,305,960

12,000,000
659,667

2011
—E——F
HK$

BT

1,686,834

535,584

10,000,000
800,000

49,639

716,808



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

32. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

R2.BEALRBERS (@)
() TEEBAEZMS

FERNESREMTIEEEENE 2 M
EWT

2012 2011

—ZE—= —E——F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Short-term benefits HEER 3,075,980 2,394,000
Post-employment benefits BBEER - 24,000
3,075,980 2,418,000

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors,
the above related party transactions were entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business on
normal commercial terms and were in accordance with
the terms of the arrangements governing the transactions
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

ESRFETHAEZMETIHFMES
E2RBEZBARBRRTSBZETE -

BYFHTESRE  LEBEEALZR
SIRAEENEERESEBBREDR
R-REBRRETRCEBTEERE
RERPZHER  MEBKRAFEE
YEARERRAIRROEERE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ =% —
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32. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Pursuant to an investment management agreement (“Tripod
Agreement”) dated 17 May 2007 entered into between the
Company and Tripod, Tripod agreed to provide the Company
with investment management services (excluding general
administrative services) commencing on 17 May 2007. Pursuant
to its terms, Tripod Agreement is renewable automatically
for successive periods of two years each upon expiry unless
terminated by either the Company or Tripod serving not less
than 3 months’ prior notice in writing on the other party. Tripod
Agreement was automatically renewed on 17 May 2011 and
terminated on 31 May 2012. During the period from 1 July 2011
to 31 May 2012, the monthly investment advisory fee is the lesser
of (i) HK$80,000; or (ii) 0.50% per annum of the net asset value
(“NAV”) of the Company as at the Valuation Day (ie. the last
dealing day of the Stock Exchange in each calendar month or
such other dealing day as considered appropriate by the Board for
the purpose of calculating the NAV) of the immediately preceding
calendar month on the basis of the actual number of days in the
relevant calendar month over a year of 365 days.

Pursuant to an investment management agreement (“CAFM
Agreement”) dated 31 May 2012 entered into between the
Company and CAFM, CAFM agreed to provide the Company
with investment management services (excluding general
administrative services) commencing on 1 June 2012. Pursuant
to its terms, CAFM Agreement is renewable automatically
for successive periods of two years each upon expiry unless
terminated by either the Company or CAFM serving not less than
3 months’ prior notice in writing on the other party. Currently the
monthly investment advisory fee is HK$40,000.

The Group had 18.25% equity interest in Quidam at 30 June 2012.
The term loan is unsecured, bears interest at 8% per annum and

repayable on demand.

Mr. Chui had beneficial interests in these companies. Service
income from these companies was charged at a negotiated value.

Mr. Yau had beneficial interests in that company until 6 May 2011.

Mr. Yau had beneficial interests in that company. The amounts are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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2. BEATRBEXRS (&)

Bt -

)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

REAARHEGENA-ZZELFHEA+LAF
YzREEEHZE (REHR]D  SERE
H-_ZZ+tFRAT+LtHEERADARMER
EEERK (—RITEBRBRID) o RIBHEMK
o REMGESRERSEHEIWNE  BX
ARRBEAEHEHFEEHFIDPR=EAZEE
iﬁLﬁ%uM¢°%§%%Em:§——¢
BEATLHEBEBEN  WER-ZFT——-FEHA
=t+—H#%1t °E’<‘_§——¢tﬁ—l§li_ﬂ_§:
E—_FRA=+—-AILHB SAREEMH
% %(i)80,000/8 7T ; = (ii) A AR B#E L — 1A
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FSHRESEECBEAEEREFEMNAMR
ZRIZEEFE(EEFEDZREBAERAZ
B H FRRUEFE365H LLER0.50%:TH
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BEKRR  CAFMBZERERKEBHEIR
F o BARQATRCAFMAI@EH A HEFRDR=
BRAZEAEMBANTFURIL -BRISARE
&R & 540,000/ 7T ©

R-ZZE-—ZFXRAB=+tH £AEEFF
Quidam218.25%R #& - EHE R A E|EA -
REFESETEREREREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

32. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY

33

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(vii) The Group had 30% equity interest in CNI Bullion at 30 June 2012.
The term loan is unsecured, bears interest at 8% per annum and
repayable on demand.

(viii) The amount due to Mr. Chui is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

(ix) The amount due to Mr. Yau is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

(x) The Group had 18.25% equity interest in Quidam which holds 84%
equity interest in Orbrich Finance at 30 June 2012. The amount
due to Orbrich Finance as at 30 June 2011 was unsecured and
interest-free.

(xi) The 20% equity interest in UCCTV of the Group has been disposed
of on 15 September 2011.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group leases its offices under operating lease
arrangements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

2. AEALTRBAERS (®)
Wit - ()

(viy R=ZZF—=—FXA=1+0 AXEEFEHEL
£230%RE - EHERARIKT  REFE
BEFERARERMEE -

(viii) BENREEZREREER RERAZRER
fEiZ -

(ix) BNELEEZRER/EER RERAZRER

fEiZ -

x) R=ZZEZ—Z-—FXB=1tH x&EEHEFE
Quidamz18.25% MR # » i Quidamiz &
Orbrich Finance Z84%3# c R—F——F X
B=++H ' FE{YOrbrich Finance 2 ;{18 & 3K
HREE -

(xi) AEEIFBUCCTVZ20%REER=-ZT——4&
NB+HEBHE -

33. KEHWKIE
AEBEREEA
RESEAOZH AEEEEETHAZE -

RB|ER - NEBRUT BB ER 2T #
HEEHENERR 2 RERSEENT :

2012 2011

—g-=f& =—B——F%

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FRr 3,226,440 1,405,920
In the second to fifth years, B_FEEERF

inclusive (BIEEEME) 910,260 1,405,920

4,136,700 2,811,840

Lease for rented premise are negotiated for an average of three
years and rental are fixed for an average of three years.

HEPEBENDBRBEREATH=F mHS
AFHEER=F -
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 30 June 2012, the Group had pledged the following assets
to secure the finance leases and the margin payables:

34. KIFEE
R-ZT—

“HERA=ZTR AEEERTIE

EERFRAMERNREBMNFRAIEZIE

S
2012 2011
—E-C—F —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Plant and equipment (Note 16) W ER&E (KEE16) - 77,376
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAREBEFAEREEZ
(Note 20) B % & &= (Mat20) 76,017,594 161,592,136
76,017,594 161,669,512
35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. REE
The Company and Longlife have jointly entered into a tenancy AAREPHREEHRBITVHERZUEAE
agreement for the lease of office premises for a term of three WMAEYE B-Z—SFELAEAERE=F
years from 5 July 2010 to 4 July 2013. As at 30 June 2012, —=ZFtAmAL RH=F R=F-—=F
the maximium rental liabilities of the Company due to default ANRA=TH XATEBAOEEXRHEESNRE
of rental payment of Longlife would be HK$1,405,920 (2011: MEEZRESHEEE51,405920/8 T (==
2,811,840). ——1% :2,811,840) °
36. PENDING LITIGATION 36. FIREFR

On 21 October 2011, the legal representative of the Company
filed an Acknowledgement of Service of Writ of Summons on
behalf of the Company in respect of a law suit HCA 1700/2011.
The said law suit involves a dishonoured cheque for the amount
of HK$39,000,000 allegedly payable to the Plaintiff. Having
thoroughly looked into the matter and taken full legal advice,
the Company firmly believes that the Plaintiff’'s claim is totally
without ground.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Board is aware,
there are no litigation or arbitration proceedings made or
threatened to be made against the Company, which would
have a significant impact on the business or operations of the
Company. No provision has been made for the year ended 30
June 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

38

(a) Pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, a non-refundable
earnest money of HK$2,500,000 was paid by a subsidiary
of the Company, upon signing the Escrow Agreement.

According to announcement on 6 July 2012, the
Subscription and implementation of the resumption
proposal in relation to 3D-GOLD will no longer proceed as
the Stock Exchange announced the delisting of the shares
of 3D-GOLD effective on 9 July 2012.

An impairment loss on the non-refundable earnest money
of HK$2,250,000 was provided for by the Group and
HK$250,000 was included in consultancy fee in the year
ended 30 June 2012.

(b) Pursuant to the placement agreement dated 23 August
2012 and an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting held on 30 December 2011, placement of
84,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each was issued to
independent third parties at a price of HK$0.113 per share
on 4 September 2012.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution MPF Scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employee’s basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement
of approximately HK$19,396 (2011: HK$55,718) represents
contributions payable to the schemes by the Group in respect
of the current financial year.

37. FERREHE

38.

(a) BEFAEHZ ALTZMBL TR
EE RS X —%2,500,00078 T 2
FAREBEHES -

REBMA-ZT-—-FLtANAZAE "
FHEZERBREEERERLT
SHREET  BERBXMAMEZEENR
BETHEER-F-—_FtANAE
WA

AEBREZE-ZE——-Fx~A=tHL
FECDBTARENZ£2,250,000% T
1E 4R E B 18 ) 250,00058 T & 5 /ERE RS
BR -

REBHA-Z——FN\B=-+=BZHE
EHBERR-_Z——F+-B=+H%
TZRRAFAG I ERCEERER
84,000,000/ B R EEHO0. 1B T 2 E B
MDIRERONMIBLZEBERNR T —_F
NENAERERTTEIE=FH -

(b)

RIKNEFGE
FEERBRIMABSTERARSERS
HRESTAzEERY - RERAHREESE
8 - HRDBBEEZERF S 2B DL
5 WREZBE SR8 2R B R AR
BRI - ZRBEH B 2EER BB
ERESHE  BAKEZEEIMRERE - &
SEzEETHRIROBRSSAEHRAEZRE
BEMRA -

REREWERHBR 2B RA%19,39678 T (=
Z——F:557188 ) BAKE R AN BEF
EmZEERMA 2R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

39. XA P BHMR F

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets IREBEE
Plant and equipment W E R 1,269,190 1,312,187
Interests in subsidiaries AHTE QT Z = 172 163
1,269,362 1,312,350
Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale investments EHERE - 38,000,000
Financial assets at fair value EAAREFAEBR
through profit or loss BRIEZHBEEE 8,566,875 32,932,671
Prepayments, deposits and EARIE - RER
other receivables H b fE W 3k 08 40,347,800 2,372,631
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UK B B8 X B R IE 330,709,962 225,355,922
Amount due from an investee FEWEZREQARRIE
company - 716,808
Bank balances $RAT 45 BR 647,921 14,377,890
380,272,558 313,755,922
Current liabilities nEBAE
Other payables and accruals HENREREFTER 11,752,934 18,189,603
Amounts due to directors EAEERE 1,883,831 1,686,831
13,636,765 19,876,434
Net current assets RBEEEE 366,635,793 293,879,488
367,905,155 295,191,838
Capital and reserves BEARR A
Share capital i@ 92,528,683 59,116,985
Reserves K] 275,376,472 236,074,853
Total equity attributable to EATRERFEEA
equity holders of the Company iR AR 367,905,155 295,191,838
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZE — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

40. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 40. X El A
Investment
Share option revaluation Accumulated
Share premium reserve reserve losses Total
RAEE BRERRE REEMRE iR a3
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B B B
At 1 July 2010 RZE-FFtA-R 229,178,978 1,253,059 2,695,740 (57,457,435) 175,670,342
Loss for the year AEEFE - - - (5,914,213 (5,914,213)
Gain on fair value changes of available- IHHLERE
for-sale investments DAEEB B = = 5,304,260 = 5,304,260
Total comprehensive loss for the year ER2EFELE - - 5,304,260 (5,914,213) (609,953)
Share option scheme: (Note 28(a)) BIREHE  (hi268(2)
- value of service -BBEE - 2,031,456 - - 2,031,456
- proceeds from share issued -BIRREE 4,299,047 - - - 4,209,047
- transfer to share premium -ERARDEE 1,253,059 (1,253,059) S = S
Issue of ordinary shares NHRARBTERR
by rights issue (Note 28(c) (H228(c)) 38,949,218 - . - 38949218
Issue of ordinary shares NEERRBTERR
by placing (Note 28(b)) (K22808)) 16,227,500 - . - 16,227,500
Share issue expenses RABTER (492,757) - - - (492,757)
At 30 June 2011 RZE--FxA=1H 289,415,045 2,031,456 8,000,000 (63,371,648) 236,074,853
At1 July 2011 RZE--Ftf-A 289,415,045 2,031,456 8,000,000 (63,371,648) 236,074,853
Loss for the year rEEER - - - (10,712,161) (10,712,161)
Transfer to consolidated income statement REETHEEREREES
on disposal of available-for-sale investments alEE - - (8,000,000) - (8,000,000)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ER2EFELE - - (8,000,000) (10,712,161) (18,712,161)
Issue of ordinary shares HEERABTERR
by placing (Note 28(d) and (¢) (H228(0) ) 60,596,780 - . - 60,596,760
Share issue expenses RABTER (2,583,000) - - - (2,583,000)
At 30 June 2012 RZE-ZFxA=1H 347,428,825 2,031,456 - (74,083,809) 215,376,472
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 #iZ — 2 ——4F<A=THIFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company as at

30 June 2012 are as follows:

&

CNI Finance Limited

Concolor Holdings Limited

Richbird Holdings Limited

Kendervon Profit Inc.

Ethnocentric Investment Limited

CNI Capital Limited

Kenabell Trading Limited

Million Full Assets Limited

Class of
shares held

Fir 5 IR 40 25

Ordinary
LER

Ordinary

LER

Ordinary
EBR

Ordinary
TRk

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary

Ordinary
EER

CAPITAL VC LIMITED & #8 A1 84 BR 2
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Place of
incorporation,”
registration
and operations
AL
BRRERLE

Hong Kong
BiE

British Virgin Islands,/
Hong Kong
RERLHEE BB

British Virgin Islands,
Hong Kong
RERLHE /BB

British Virgin Islands,”
Hong Kong
RERLHEE/BE

British Virgin Islands,/
Hong Kong
KERLHEE /BB

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands,/
Hong Kong
RERLHE/BA

British Virgin Islands
Hong Kong
RBRZHEE /BB

M. FTEHNBELF

HN=

T —

EMEARZHBNT

Nominal value
of issued share

and fully paid
share capital
BRTROK
BRRAEE

HK$100
1007 7T

Us$1

127

Us$1

1%

Us$1
1270

Us$1

1%

HK$3
Ky

US$1
(e

US$1
127

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
N3
REBDHL

Directly
E#

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Indirectly
1

100%

ZHEARNA=TH AREMERZE

Principal activities

TEEHR

Investment holding
REZR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

REER

Investments of listed
securities in
Hong Kong
RERBEZLTES

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

41. T EM B LT @)

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/  of issued share of equity
registration and fully paid attributable to
Class of and operations share capital the Company
Name shares held HEMmKL/ BETRAR NGl 3t Principal activities
L PR 38 5l BRREELE BRRAEE REBDH TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# Gk
Huge Energy Holdings Limited Ordinary British Virgin Islands,” US$1 100% - Investments of listed
EER Hong Kong 1% securities in
RERZEE /BB Hong Kong
RENEHRZ
LtHES
Smart Able Holdings Limited Ordinary British Virgin Islands,” US$1 100% - Investment holding
EER Hong Kong 127 REER
REBRZEE /BB
Long Surplus Investments Limited Ordinary British Virgin Islands,/ US$50,000 - 100% Investment holding
EER Hong Kong 50,000% 7T REER
RERLHES /BB

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ERIEARAESRRATIELEAEEXERE
EZHWBLRR  -EEZRRIHEMKMBLARFE
ECHERBEESAR -

RERFFEREMERE - HEKHNEQDEREMN
ERITZEBRS -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited

financial statements, is set out as follows:

FEEREBEERVMBBRR2BELAMBRFEZ
CH#XE EEREEHEHINT :

RESULTS e
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
“E--f CZE--§ CZE-ZfF CZEZEZNF ZCZEE\E
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Turnover CE L (148,462,292)  (984,164) 23,255411  (2,935,787) 445,198
(Loss) profit before tax BEBE (F18) BRI (100,793,697) 23,371,420 35,508,758  (2,352,846) (22,999,435)
Income tax B - = 461,433 = (443,250)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable RARARERFEA
to equity holders of the Company FESERE (FB)BF (100,793,697) 23,371,420  35970,191  (2,352,846) (23,442,685)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHARE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—g--F Z®--% <-3-BF C2BNF C—BENF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Total assets BEE 413,614,691 479,416,089 355,964,956 284,904,665 262,885,489
Total liabilities meE (43,894,471) (65,327,650) (38,566,081) (22,967,467) (32,015,075)
Total equity attributable to equity ERATRERFEA
holders of the Company FElEER A 369,720,220 414,088,439 317,398,875 261,937,198 230,870,414
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